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3 Bank brief information

Feunding decision: The Bank was incorporated on 23 Navember 2009

Certiflcate and license: The Bank was registered with the General Authority for State Registration of

Mongotia on 10 June 2002 with obtaining the State Regisiration Certificate MNe
9007001011 and the State Registration Number 5341469, The Bank ¢onducts
its business under License Number # 26, granted on 23 November 2009 by

e the Bank of Mongolia {Bald).
Board: B. Telmuun Chairman, Diractor General of Tax Policy
] Department, Minfslry of Finance of Mongofie
B B, Ganbat Boart member, Flrst Deputy Cﬁler Cabinet .
E . Secretary, Monguﬂa . _
i . D.Tsalmon Board member, Ch}ef of Legat Pa!rcy Depaﬂmenf '
. . _Mm;stry pf Justice anp‘ Homa Affairs, Mengolia
i - . -Boa'r'd.ri'le'natber, Director of the Financlel Policy
{ " B. 8ukh-Ochir . -Department at the Minisliy of Finance, Mongolia
Board member, Chairmar of the Finance and
i ) " - Budgst Research Department, Mm.‘stfy of
H .
£ G,Zﬂlb_bo R 'FMance. Mongoﬂa
Buard mamber Dirscior of Fmanc;a! Madcats and'
I _ e _ Insurence Division, Fipancial Pollcy. Deparfment,
i . [k Sonoy - antfry of Flnance, Mongm’.ra N
i h ) L LT
M. -Bguarg'al : !ndepehdent member.
D. Enkhjargal Indepenident member
8. Tsend-Auysh Independent mamber
i Management team: U. Gantur . Chief Execlu[lve Officer

Kh, Lkhagvasuren

Direclor of Busmess Palicy and F‘Iannlng
Deparﬁment :

B. Sodonbaatar Director for Marketing and Public Relations
- E. Batbaya_r Di;'ec:lor of Credit Depariment
B, Amarsanaa. Cirector of tha Lagal Department
A. Balmunkh Dirsctor of internal Audit
_ M. Gantuyé Director of Financial Deparlmanl
" G. Enkhtamir - Director of Information Technology
E L. Bolormaa " Director of Human Resources
. D, Jadambaa -Director of the Treasury Department
Z. Tuyalselseg '

ezt

B. Agvaantseren

Sh. Altanchim_eg

Dirgctor _of Branch Managerment Depart_ment

. Di_récto'r of Insurance De#artment

. Director of Compliznceé Deparimant

Slate Barnk J3C
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N. Ganzorig Diractar of Qperations Department
B. Sugar Directer of Customer Service Department
Ts. Damdinsuren Directar of Risk Managsment Depadment

Principal activities:

The Bank accepts deposits from the public and extends credit, transfers
payrnents in Mongolia and abroad, exchanges currencies, purchese, sale,
storage and safekeeping of precious metals and gemstonies, storage of
valuables, foreign sattlernants and issuance, sale and purchase of securilies
aryd and provides other banking services to its commercial and refail
custamers.

Number of employees:

3,856

Address: Slate Bank Building, Baga Toiruu-7/1, the 1% khoroo, Chingeltei District,
WHaanbaatar city, Mongolia :
Auditor: Grant Tharnton Audit LLG - Gertified firm of audit, accounting, financtal

- advisory, training and appraisal

State Bank JSG
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Management's statement of
responsibility for financial reporting

Management is responsible for fair presentation of the State Bank JSC's financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022, and its financial performance, cash flows and changes in equity for the period in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards.

Management has fulfilled the following responsibilities in preparing the financial statements:

»  Complied all accounting standards through selection of and consistent adherence to appropriate accounting
policy, as well as reasonable and accurate calculation and assessment.

» Taken necessary actions to safeguard the bank's assets, to prevent any fraud and misconduct, and to
identify such activities.

»  The Bank has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

» Obliged to constantly review matters that are legitimate or derivative accountabilities as a result of past
events or that may result in future losses, and it has clarified the legitimate and derivative responsibilities
and contingencies.

B. Telmuun, Board Chairman of the State Bank JSC, and U. Gantur, Chief Executive Officer, and M. Gantuya,
Director of Finance Department, declare that the accompanying financial statements presented in page 11to 17
of this report give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as of 31 December 2022, and its
financial performance and cash flows for the period, in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards. :

2 = Director of Fina Department

' ' : M. Gantuya
ate: 10 March 2023 : . Date: 10 March 2023
5341456

State Bank JSC
Financial Statements
31 Deceniber 2022
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Independent Auditor’s R

A member firm of GTIL global
network for assurance, tax and

R e p O rt advisory services

Dalal Tower, & floor,
UNESCO street, Sukhbaatar
District-1, Ulaanbaatar 14230
Mongolia

T+ 976 70 110744

T+ 87670 110799

To shareholders of the State Bank JSC

Unqualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “financial statement’) of the State Bank
JSC (hereinafter referred to as “Bank”), which comprise the following statements as of 31 December 2022,
including:

- Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
-  Statement of financial position,

- Statement of changes in equity,

- Statement of cash flows,

- A summary of significant accounting policies, and

- Notes to the financial statements,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the State Bank JSC, give a true and fair view of
the financial position as of 31 December 2022 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended, in all material respects, in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Unqualified Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “IESBA Code")
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants of Mongolia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with those ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters, in our judgement, are matters that have significant impacts on financial statements for
the current period. Within the scope of our audit on financial statements, matters were addressed as a
whole, and no separate opinions were given on each matter.

www.grantthornton.mn
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Key audit matters Response
Expecied Credit Loss (ECL) With respect to impaiment methodology, our audit procedures
allowance comprised the following:

Expected credit loss slowance was
considered as a key audit matter due to
significance of loans to customers as
well as the subjectivity of assumptions
underlying the impairment
assessmant. Applying different
judgments and assumptions can lead
to significantly difterent results of the
expected credit loss allowance, which
may have a material effect on the
Bank's financial rasults.

Key areas of judgment included the
interpretation of the requirements to
detemine impairment under
application of iFRS 8, which is reflected
in the Bank's expected credit ioss
model, the identification of exposures
with & significant deterioration in credit
guality, assumptions used in the
expected credit loss model such as the
financial condition of the counterparty,
expected future cash flows and forward
looking macroeconomic factors and the
need to apply additional overlays to
reflect current or future external factors
that are not appropriately captured by
the expected credit loss model.

We read the Bank's JFRS 8 based impaimment provisioning
pelicy and compared # with the requirements of IFRE 9.

We assessed the design and tested the operating
effectivenass of relevant controls over the data used to
determine the impaiment reserve, including transactional
data captured at loan origination, engoing internal credit
quality assessments, storage of data and interfaces to the
expected credit loss model,

We assessed the design and fested the operating
effectiveness of relevant controls over the expected credit
loss model, including modet build and appreval, ongeing
monitering/validation, model governance and mathematical
accuracy.

We checked the appropiiateness of the Bank's
detemmination of significant increase in credit risk and the
rasuttant basis for classification of exposures into various
stages.

For a sample of risk exposures, we checked the
appropriatengss of the Bank's staging.

We assessed and tested the material modeling assumptions
as well as overlays with a focus on the key modeling
assumptions adopted by the Bank and sensitivity of the
provisions to changes in modeling assumptions.

For forward looking assumptions used by the Bank's
management in its expected credit loss calculations, we
held discussions with management and corrocborated the
assumptlions using publicly available information.

We examined a sample of risk exposures and performed
procedures to evaluate the fimely identification of exposures
with a gignificant deterioration in credit quality and expected
loss calculation for exposures assessed on an individual
basis.

We understood the theoretical soundness and tested the
mathemalical integrity of the models applied.

For data from external sources, we understood the process
of choosing such data, its relevance for the Bank, and the
controls and governance over such data;

We invelved our IT specialists in areas that required spedific
expertise (i.e. data reliability and the axpected credit loss
maodel).

We assessed the accuracy of the disclosures in the financial
statements,

wirw.grantthornboo.mm



Emphasis of matter

Pariament of Mongolia passed an amendment to the Banking Law on 29 January 2021, Mongolia's new requirements
for its systemicaily important banks to be listed and to cap a bank sharehelder's rights at 20% will improve transparency
and strengthen the banking system's corporate governance in the medium-to-longer term, ultimately contributing o
the system's stability. The amendments to the Banking Law require domestic systemically important banks {D-SIB) iy
Mangolia to become public companies through IPOs In the stock market. [n addition, all commercial banks are required
1o reduce shareholder concentration with a maximum of 20% ofthe bank's total shares for a shareholder and its related
pardies. Under the amendment, it will support fair competition in the banking system and prevant market dominance
and any anti-competitive activities.

Pursuant to this amendment to the Banking Law and Parliament's Resolution No.16 dated 29 April 2022 "Approving
Basic Guidelines for the Public Sale of Shares of State-Owned Legal Entities in 2022-2023", the State Bank offered a
total of 37.5 million ordinary shares with a nominal value of 250 MNT each or 5% of its total shares to the public on 30
September 2022 and acquired the status of an open joint-stock company.

Other matters

The State Bank JSC's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 was audited by the Ernst & Young
Mongolia Audit LLC and they provided an unqualified opinion.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report of the State Bank JSC for the year ended 31 December 2022, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon, The annual report is expected to be made available fo us after the date
of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements dues not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
agsurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with cur audit of the financiat statements, our respansibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes avallable and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governarice for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to coniinue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern bagis of
accounting unless management either intends {o liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic
altarnative but fo do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance ahout whether the financial statemenis as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an sudit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it exisis.

www.granilborntonmn
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professicnal skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissicns,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

=  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an cpinion on the effectiveness of the
Bank's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Engagement Partner of this Auditor's Report is N. Erdenetsog.

) &7
N. ERDENE%G

ENGAGEMENT PARTNER
Date: 10 March 2023

www.grantthornton.mn



GrantThornton
| Statement of profit or loss and other
] comprehensive income
-
In thousand MNT Notes 2022 2021
-
Interast income calculated using effective interest method ] 396,145,491 363,500,188
Interest and simitar income 6 8784428 21,973,641 .
- . Interest and simltar expenses 6 (182,669,623) (199,640,521}
Net interest income : : 222,070,296 194,853,308
.Fes and commission income AR I o 34,132,518 - #8,0583,607
Fee and commission expense o 7 (8828413) . (8.718831)
Net fee and commisslon Income o T 28,304,105 22,334,976
Nettrading income o 8 13,461,603 4,006,641
Other eperating incomel{expense) . el (2,550308) - {17.541,753)
Total opérating income S : _ L . 258,276,608 203,633,172
o Credit [oss incomef{expense) on financlal assets - - L E : 4,157,793 {32,012,880) -
{ ) _ - Net operating Income T o ' ' 262,434,4H - 171,620,282
Qperating expenses ' 11 {138,280,871) {110,605,423) -
{" Profit before tax - 124,153,620 61,014 859
Income tax expense ] 12 (28,858 777) - {15,267, 27 1)
{ Profit for the year o 97,294,843 45,747,588

Eamings per share

(' B Earnings per share 30 0129 257.0
Slale Bank JSC

Financial Satemenis

] 31 Decomber 2022 12
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Statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (continued)

In thousand MNT Mates 2022 2021
Other comprehensive income:

Cther camprehensive fncome (o be reclassified to profit or loss in

suhsenuent periods — (after fax):

Net change in fair valug of debt insiruments at fair value through

other comprehensiva income 30 {15,035,131) (4,967,873)
Uther commprehensive mcome nal o be reciassitied 1o prolt or

foss in subsequent periods — {alter fax):

Revaluation of fixed assets 30 11,135 -
Disbursement of Social Development Fund 0 . {37,950) (37,378)
Other comprahensive income {15,081,946) (5,025,251)
Total comprehensive income for the year after tax - 82,232,897 _

40,722,337

The statemant of profit or Ioss and other camprehensive is fo be read in conp.mctlon wﬂh the netes to and formmg part, of the

ﬂnanclal statements set out on pages 18 to 94.

Slale Bank J5C

Financial Stalemanls
33 Decamber 2022 13
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] Statement of financial position

31 December 31 December

— In thousand MNT Noles 2022 2021
Assels

""" ' Cash and balanceas at Bank of Mongolia 12 726,398,277 250,920,691
Due from banks snd cthers financial institutions 14 231,538,852 28,534,316
Derivatlva financial [nstruments 18 15,034,433 789,107

- Loans and advances to customers ' 16 1,86B,626,502  2,237,147,348
Financial assets held for trading . : 117 ' 10,896,733 7,310,813
Flnancial essets at fair value thraugh profit or loss . 17 128,002,947 80,844,572

B :?ligtrg:stmmenls at fair value through sther comprehensive . 18 . 957,771,728 967_.31 5,767

1. - E;qu.llll]t):: ; r}gt;_:ﬁ: r?;z :;1 f:w value through other | 18 120,466 118385
Dabt Instruments at amortized cost 18 68,223,496 87,786,697
Qther assels 19 18,279,807 - 21,266,799
Assets held for sale ' o L 20 12,804,113 5,762,200

- " lnvestment property - : S 21 . 2,848,500 2,364,878

f Property and equipment ' S m 118,046,524 115,918,630

: Intarglble assets ' ' " 5040582 5630775
Right-of-use assels 24 20,573 53,279
Total assets . ' 4,164,641,534 3,792,734,256

o

L

L.

-

. State Bank JSC

1 Financial Stalements |

E _ 31 December 2022 14




l ° GrantThornton
| Statement of financial position (continued)

‘ I thousand MNT Notes ATHRepES S PRe

i Liabilities
Due to banks and other financial institutions 25 315,533,091 115,952,799
Repurchase agreements 26 333,230,213 153,809,693
Due to customers 27 2,749,360,513 2,856,798,045
Derivative financial instruments 15 2,286,265 1,549,920

: Borrowed funds 28 234,934 137 252,376,321
Other liabilities 29 ARG AR 15,847,976
Lease payables 24 197,130 234,657
Income tax liabilities 12 1,196,135 4,865,246
Deferred tax liabllities 12 S.334,381 2,815,761

3,668,432,355

Total liabilities 3,404,250,318

Equity attributable to equity holders of the bank

Ordinary shares 30 188,774,063 178,000,000
I Share premium 30 14,852,725 =
Other reserves 30 14,215,779 29,368,212
Retained earnings 278,566,612 181,116,726
Total equity 496,209,179 388,483,938

4,164,641,534

Total liabilities and equity 3,792,734,256

The statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements
set out on pages 18 to 84,

Director of Finapgial Department
M. Gantuya

State Bank JEC
Financial Statemenis
31 December 2022 15
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Statement of changes in equity

In thousand MNT

Ordinary
shares

Share
pramium

Reserves

Retained
eamings

Subordinate
debt

Total equity

Balance
1 January 2021

133,900,000

34,393,463

136,368,138

44,100,000

347,761,601

Profit for the year

45,747,588

45,747 588

Other
somprehansive
Income

(5,025,251)

{8,025.251)

Subordinate debt
converted into
ordinary shares

44,100,000

{44,100,000)

Total
comprehensive
income

178,000,000

29,368,212

181,115,726

388,483,938

Balance
31 Dacember 2021

178,000,000

29,268,212

181,115,728

388,483,938

Profit for the year

97,294,843

97,294,843

Other
comprehensive
incorme

{15.051,946)

(15,061,946)

Total
comprehensiva
incoma

{15,061,946)

87,294,843

82,232,897

Changes in eguity

10,774,063

14,662,725

65,566

25,492,244

Realized
revaluation

(90,487}

90,487

Bzlance
31 December 2022

188,774,083

14,662,725

14,215,778

278,566,612

496,209,179

The statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financlal statements

set aut on pages 18 lo 94.

Siate Bank JSC
Financla! Statemenis
31 Decembar 2822 16
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Statement of cash flows

In thoeusand MNT Notes 2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 124,155,620 61,014,850
Adjugtment for:

Changes in falr value of financial detivatives {13,538,982) 359,815
Changes in fair value of financial assets held for frading {2,565,371) (733}
Imnpairment provision for repessessed collalerals 9 4,641,891 3.553,750
Expected credit loss allowance 10 {4,157,793) 32,012,890
Depreciation of property and egquipment 11 13,183,381 1 3,14?,220
Amortization of intangible assets " 766,441 824,743
Pepreciation of right-of-use assels ' 11 32,706 36821,726
Loss on disposal of property and équipment 11 223,902 174,792
Revaluation surplus of investment property (483,622) -
Interast expense on borrowed funds at 6,714,812 7,201,098
Net modification loss 9,31 - 13,830,889 -
Met interast amartization from medifleation loss 31 - (10,426,857}
interest expense an lease payables [ 7,572 344,962
Disbursement of Soclal Development Fund 30 (37,850} (87,378)
Disbursement of revaluation reserve 20 11,135 -
Nan-cash items arising from financing activities (22,880,162} 32,410
Operating profit before changes In working capital 106,071,680 125,850,986
Changes in opereting assets and Eabilities;

Stetulery deposifs wilh BoM (33,805,186} (22.735.604)
Bue from other banks and financial institutions {201,839) {142,535)
Loans and advances to customers 371,134,334 (516,812,3185)
Othar assels {788,076) 1,638,383
Assets held for sale (B.131,814) (2,168,688)
Due to other bank and flnanclal institutions 199,580,292 {18,212.994)
Repurchase agraement 178,420,520 82,567,237
Bug to custorners {107,437,532} 178,355,689
Other liabilifies 10,512,504 2,855,698
Cash flow {used in) from operating activities 718,354,780 {168,801,133)
Income laxes pald 12 {26,762 884) (11,961,341)
Inierest porfion of lease payables paid K| {7.572) {344,962)
Inlerest paid on borrowed funds | {5,456,385) (6,383,780}
Net cash flows {used in) from cperating activities 685,127,828 {187,491,21¢€)
Cash flows from investing actlvitles

Purchase of financial investiment (23,970,892 184) {18,334,174,054)
Proceeds fromn disposal of flnanclal investment 23,859,267,079 18,359,834,007
Purchase of property and equipment ' 23 {15,535,177) (11,060,305)
Purchase of intanglble assets 23 {1,076,248) (1,109,742)
Net cash flows fromf{usaed in} investing activities 12,580,806

{328,236,530)

Stats Bark JSC
Financlal Stetemanis
31 December 2022 17




GrantThornton

Statement of cash flow (continued)

In thousand MNT Notes 2022 2021

Cash flows from financing activities

. Proceeds from drawdown of barrowed funds k) | 611,597,875 274,843,524
Repayment of borrowed funds 3 {636,050,626) (250,173,749)
Payment of principal portion of lease payables k] (37,427) (4,256,897)
P ) Rezeived from issuance of share and other equity securitles 265,426,788 -
Net cash flows from/f (used in) finansing activities 936,810 20,412,878
I Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents 357,827,908 (154,487,532}
Ii ) . Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the year 797,998,193 952,485,725
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 31 1,155,826 101 797,998,193
[ Nen-cash movement:
Right-of-use assels 24 - 478,809
{{ [.ease payables 24 - {479,608)
i,

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements sat out
{ N on pages 18 to 94,

]

$late Bank JSC
Finanzial Statemanls
3 December 2022 18
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GrantThornton
Notes to the financial statements

1 Principal activities

The State Bank JSC, Incorporated In Mongolla, conducts its business under License Number # 28 that was
granted on 23 November 2009 by the Bank of Mongolia (BoM).

The Bank accepts deposits from the public and extends credii, transfers payments in Mongalia and abroad,
exchanges currencies, purchase, sale, storage and safekeeping of precious metals and gemstones, storage of
valuables, foraign settlements and 1ssuance, sale and purchase of securifles and and provides other banking
services to its commercial and retail customers, The headguarter of the bank is located in Ulaanbaatar city and
has 496 branches in Ulaanbaatar city and other regions, aimags and soums.

A total of 49.26% of the bani’s shares are owned by the Ministry of Finance of Mongolla, 45.03% by the Deposit
Insurance Coarporation, and 5.71% by the public.

The Bank's officlal registered address: State Bank Building, Baga Toiruu-7/1, the 1st khoroo, Chingeltel District,
Ulaanbaatar-210644, Mongolia.

The State Bank was given B3 rating by the International rating Moody's Investors Service/Standard & Poor's.

2 Mongolian business environment

The changes in political and econemic enviranment and the development of the legal, tax and legislative systems
in Mongolia have continuing nature and the stability and development of the Mongolian economy largely depends
ot these changes.

In 2002 after the recession, the Mongolian economy entered a phase of stable recovery. It is expected {hat the
gradual improvement of the COVID-19 epidemic situation, the expansion of public-private investment will
stimulate the growth of 2022, The government's efforts to Improve the business environmaent, increase access {o
finance for SMEs and create opportunities for priority social spending, as well as an expanded action plan for
capital market development, should contribute fo the stabillty and development of tha Mongolian economy.

These financial statements reflect management's assessment of the impact of the Mongolian business
environment an the operations of the Bank. However, the future economie and political stuation and its impact
on the Bank's operations may differ from the management’s current expectations.

3 Basis of preparation

3.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS"} as developed and publishad by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB}), and
Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {("IFRIC™,

The Bank prepares statements for regulatory purposes in accardance with legislative requirements of Mongalia.
Thesa financial statements are based on the Bark's books and records as adjusted and reclassified in order to
comply with IFRS.

3.2 Basis of measurement

The financial staiements have been prepared on a falr value basis for financial instruments at fair value thmugh'
profit or tass and at fair value through other comprehensive income. Other financial assets and liabilities are
stated at amortized cost and non-financial assets and liabilities are stated at historical cost {with the exceptlon of
assets, which are slated at revalued amount).
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3.3 Functional and presentation currency

Funchonal currency of the Bank is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Bank operates,
The Bank's functionai currency and the Bank's presentation currency Is Mongolian Tugrug {"MNT") since this
currency best reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and fransaclions of the Bank. The
financial statements are presented in MNT, unless otherwise stated. All financial [nformation expressed in
Moangolian MNT is rounded to thousand MINT.

3.4 Comparative information
Comparative information is reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the cument year.
The eftect of main changes in presentation of the statement of financial position [s as follows:

The part of the required reserves in foreign currancy of the BoM fram the "Cash and their equivalents” item was
presented within "Amounts due from financial institutions” line.

The effact of main changes In presentation of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is
the presentation of a separate line "Operating income”,

3.5 Changes in accounting policies

The Bank applied for the first-time cerain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. The Bank has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective,

No new standards and amendments applied for the first time in 2022-that have a material impact on the annual
financial statements of the Bank.

Some accounting pronguncements which have become effective from 1 January 2021 and have therefore baen
adopted do not have a significant impact on the Bank’s financial results or position,

The standards and amendments that are effective for the first time in 2022 and could be applicable to the Bank
are:

Reference lo the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)

COVID-19 — Relaled Renl Concessfons beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendments to IFRS 16}
Propenrty, Plant and Equipment: Procesds Before intended Use (Amendments fo 1AS 16}
Onerous Confracts — Cost of Fullfiting a Conlract (Amendments tc IAS 37)

Annual Improvements {2018-2020 Cycfe):

Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter {Amendments lo IFRS 1)

Fees in the 10 per cont’ Test for Derecognition of Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS 9)
Lease incentives (Amendments to IFRS 18)

Taxatlion in Fair Value Measurements {Amendmenis o IAS 41},

3.6 Standards and interpretations not yet applied by the Bank

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and interpretations
to the existing Standards have been published but are not vet effective. The Bank has not early adopted any of
these pronouncements.

Management anticipates that all of the pronouncements will be adopted In the Bank's accounting policy for the
first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.

Managsment does not anticipate a material impact on the Bank's financial statements from these Standards and
Amendments, they are presented below,

IFRS 17 Insurance Confracts

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracis (Amendments to IFRS 17 and IFRS 4)
Classkffcation of liabiltias as current or non-current (Amendments fo IAS 1)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments fo IAS 1 and IFRS Praclice Statement 2)
Deferred Tax refated fo Assels and Liabilitfes from a Single Transaction.

Definition of Accounting Estimates {Amendmaents {c IAS 8}
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been applied in the preparation cf the financial statements.
The accounting pdlicles have been consistently applied.

4.1 Recognition of income and expenses

Revente is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the
reverue can be reliably measured. Expense is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow from the Bank and the expense can be reliably measured. The following specific criterla must
also be met before revenue is recognized:

The effective inferest rate method

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method, The "effective
interest rate” Is the rafe that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipis through the expected
life of the financial instrument to:

- the grose camrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability,

When calculating the eifective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired assets, the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument, but not expectad credit losses {ECL}. For purchased or originated credit impalred financial assets, a
credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculaled using estimated fulure cash flows including ECL.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaclion costs include incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financlal liabflity.

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The "amortised cost” of a financial asset or financial liability is tha amount at which the financial asset or financial
liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
arnortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amound and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance. The "gross carrying amount of
afinancial asset" is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.,

Calculation of interest income and expense

In caleulating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied 1o the gross carrying amount of
the asset {when the asset is not credit-impaired} or to the amortised cost of the liability.

However, for financial assets that have bacomae credit-impairad subsequent to Initial recognition, Interest Income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the assetis
no longer creditimpairad, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the grass basis, -

For financial assets that were craditimpaired on initial recognition, interest income is caleulated by applying the
credit-adjusted effactive interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset, The calculation of interest income does
not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.

Other interest income

In calculating other interest income, the nominal interest rate is applied to the gross asset value on a straight-line
basis,

Fee and commission income

Fee and commisaion income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or
financial lability are included in the effective interest rate.

Qther fee and commission income - including account servicing fess, investment management fees, sales
commission, placement fees and syndication fees — is recognised as the related services are performed, If a loan
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commitrent is not expected to result in the draw-down of a Ioan, then the related loan commiltment fee is
recognised on & siraight-line basjs over the commitment period.

A contract with a customer that results in a recognised financiat instrument in the Bank's financial statements
may be pariially in the scope of IFRS 9 and partially in the scope of IFRS 15. If this is the case, then the Bank
first applies IFRS 8 to separate and measurs the part of the coniract that is in the scope of IFRS 8 and then
applies IFRS 15 fo the residual.

Qther fee and commission expenses relate mainly to fransaction and service fees, which are expensed as the
services are received,

Dividend income

Revenus is recognized when the Bank’s right to regeive the payment is established,

Net trading income

Nat trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilties, and Includes all realized
and unrealized fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchanga differences related to trading assets
and llabilities. Net trading income also includes gains less losses from trading in foreign curretcies and is

_ recagnized in profit or loss when the corresponding service is provided,

4.2 Foreign currency

Transaclions in forsign currencies are inltially recorded [n the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the
transactions. Gains and losses resulting from the translation of trading assets are recegnised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in net trading incoms, while gains less losses resulting from
translation of non-trading assefs are recognized in the statement of profit or joss in other income or other
expense. Monetary assets and liabilifles denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance shest date.

Changes [n the fair value of monetary securities denominated in forefgn currency classified as investment
securities &t fair vajue through other comprehensive income are analysed between transtation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to changeas in the amorlisad cost are racagnised in profit or loss, and
other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in the own equity.

Non-maonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as the dates of the initial transactions, Non-monetary items measured at, fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was dstermined. Translation
differences on non-raoneiary items, such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part
of the falr value gain or loss, Translation diffarences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified as equity
investment in respect of which an election has been made to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI
are included in the falr value reserve in equity,

In the Bank's financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions of Bank entities with a funclional currency
other than the MNT {the Bank’s presentation currency) are translated inte MNT upon consolidafion. The functional
currency of the entities in The Bank has remained unchanged during the reporting period.

On consolidation, assets and liabilities have been translated into MNT at the closing rate at the reporting date,
Income and expenses have been translated into the Bank's presentaticn currsncy at the average rate over the
reporting period. Exchange differences are chargedferedited to other comprehensive incame and recognised in
the currency translation reserve in equity. On disposat of a foreign operation the cumulative translation
differences recognised in equity are reclassified to profit or joss and recognised as part of the gain or [oss on
disposal. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity have been treated as
assets and liabililies of the foreign entity and translated into MNT at the closing rate.

Differences between the contractual exchange rate of a certaln transaction and the prevalling average exchange
rate on the date of the fransaction are included in gains less losses from trading in foreigh currencles in net
frading income.
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The exchange rates at year-end used by the Bank in the preparation of the financlal statements are as follows:

31 December 31 Decamber

Fareign currency 2022 2029
usph 3,444.60 2,840.80
Eure 3,669.02 3,222,989
Ruble 48.85 38.34
Yuan 495.40 447,15
Yen 26.07 24,74
Pound 4,156.60 3,836.19
Won 273 240
4.3 Taxation

tncome tax on the profit for the year comprisas current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the statement
of profit or lgss and other comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly
In equity, in which sase it is recognized in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. In the case
when financial statements are authorized for issue before appropriate {ax returns are submitted, {axable profits
or losses are based on estimates. Tax authorities might have more stringent position in interpreting tax legislation
and in revlewing tax calculations. As a result, tax authorities might claim additional taxes for those transactions,
for which they did not claim previously. As a resull, significant additional taxes, fines and penalties could arise.
Tax review can include 3 calendar years immediately preceding the year of a review. In cerfain circumstances
tax review can include even more periods.

Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary differences using the liability method.
Deferred income taxes are provided for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assels and
liabilities and their canying values for financial reporting purposes, except where the deferred income tax arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a2 business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

A deferred tax asset is recorded only fo the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against.

which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
tax rates that are expected to apply to the pericd when the asset (s realized or the fiability is seltled, based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income {ax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is
probakble that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Mongolia also has various cperating taxes, which are assessed on the Bank's activities. These taxes are included
&s a component of cther expensas in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income,

4.4 Financial instruments

4.4.1 Recognifion and initial measurement

The Bank initlally recognises loans and advances, deposits, debt securifies issued and subordinated liabilities on
the date on which ihey are originated. All other financlal instruments {including regular-way purchases and sales
of financial assets) are recognised on the {rade date, which is the date on which The Bank becomes a party to
the contractual provislons of the instrument,

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initiafly at fair vatue plus, for an item not at FVTPL, fransaction
costs that are directly attributabls to its acquisition or issue.
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4.4.2 Classification

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCH or FVTPL.

A financial asset Is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following condltions and is not designated
as of FVYTPFL:

» the asset is held within a business mode! whose objective s to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOC! only if it meets both of the follawing conditions and is not designated
as of FVTPL:

v the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved .by'both collecting confractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

+  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates o cash flows that are solely payments
of princlpal and interast on the principal amount outstanding.

Oninitial recognition of an eyuity investment that is not held for trading, the Bank may irrevacably elect to present
subseguent changes in fair value in QOCI. This efection is made on an investmeni-by-investmant basis.

All other financlal assefs are classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Bank may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meels the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost ar at FVOCI as of FVTPL If doing so eliminatss or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Bank makes an assessment cf the objective of a business model in which an asset is hald at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

« the stated polictes and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In particular,
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular
interest rats profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are
funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

« how the performance of the portfolio is evaluzsted and reparted to the Bank's management;

» the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

+ how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of
the assets managed or the contractuat cash flows collected; and

+ the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations
about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity s not considered in isolation, but as
part of an overall assessment of how the Bank's stated objective for managing the financial assets s
achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of piincipal and interest
(The SPFI test}

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘princlpal Is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of meney and for the credit risk associated
with tha principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for ether basic lending risks and costs
{e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin. In assessing whether the contractual cash
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flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Bank considers tha confractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term $hat could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition,

In making the assessment, the Bank considers:

« contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;
« leverage features;

» prepayment and extension terms;

+  terms that limit the Bank's ctaim to cash fiows from specifiad assets (e.g. non-recourse assel arrangements);
and

+ fealures that modify consideration of the time value of money — e.g. periodical reset of interest rates,

[The Bank holds a portfolio of long-term fixed rate loans for which the Bank has the option to propose to revise
the Interest rafe at periodic reset dates. These reset rights are limited fo the market rate at the time of revisian,
The borrowers have an option to either accept the revised rate or redeem the lozan at par without panalty. The
Bank has determined that the contractual cash flows of these teans are solely payments of principal and interest
because the option varies ths interest rate in a way that it represents a consideration for the time value of money,
credit 7isk, other basic lending risks and costs associated with the principal amount outstanding (i applicabie) ]

Reciassifications

Financial assels are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the perlod after the Bank
changes lts business mode} for managing financial assets. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.
Financiai fiabliifties

The Bank classifies its financial liabilifies as measured at amortised cost or FVTFEL.
443 Derecognition

Financlal assets

The Bank derecognises & financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from ihe financial assst
expire {refer also to note 4.7.4), ar it fransfers the rights to recelve the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are fransferred or in which the
Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrving
amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised} and the sum of (i) the consideration recelved (including
any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in QCi is recognised in profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised In OCI in respect of eguity investment securities designated as of FYOCl is

not recognised in profit or loss on dereccgnition of such securities. Any interast in transferrad financial assets

that qualify for derscognition that is created or retained by the Bank is recognised as a separale assel or liability.

The Bank enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on ks statement of financlal position,
but retains eithar all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. In
such cases, the fransferred assets are not derecagnised. Examples of such transacfions are securities iending
and sale-and-repurchase fransactions.

When assets are sold to a third party with a concurrent total rate of retum swap on the transferred assets, the
transaction is accounted for as a secured financing transaction similar o sale-and repurchase transactions,
because the Bank retains all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownershlp of suich assets,

In transactions in which the Bank neither retaing nor {ransfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of

ownership of a financial asset and it retains contro! over the asset, the Bank continues to recognise the asset to -

the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value
of the transferred asset.
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In certain fransactions, the Bank retains the obligation to service the fransferred financial asset for a fee, The
transferred asset is derecognised Iif if meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability is recognised far the
servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than adeguale (asset) or is less than adequate (liability) for
performing the servicing.

Financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises a financiat llability when its confractual obligatlons are dischargsd or cancelled or explre.
444 Modifications of financial assets and financial fiabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Bank evaluates whether the cash flows of ths modified asset
are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows
from the original financial assst are deemed to have expired. In this cass, the original financial asset is
derecognised {refer to note 4.4.3) and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value plus any eligible
transaction costs.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortisad cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, The Bank recalculates the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset end recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying
amount as a modification gain or [oss In profit or loss. If such a modification is caried out because of financial
difficulties of the borrower (refer to note 4.4.8), then the gain or oss is presented together with impairment losses.
In other cases, it is presented as interest income.

Financiai liabilities

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability
are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified tenms is recognised at fair
valus. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial
liability with modified lerms is recognised in profit or loss.

4,45 Offsetling

Financial assets and liabilities, and income and expenses, are offset and the net amount raparted in the financial
statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and satile the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presenied en a net basis only when permitted under IFRS, or for gains and losses
arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Bank's trading activity,

4.4.6 Impairment

The Bank assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit fosses ('ECL') on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

financial assels measured at amortised cost

financial assels measured at fair value through cther comprehensive income
lease receivables

loan commitments to pravide a lean

+ finangial guarantee contracts

* & B ow

No impaimment loss is recognisaed on equlty investiments,

The Bank measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. except for the following, for which they
are measured as 12-month ECL:

»  debt investment securitiss that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

= other financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significanily since thair initial racognition.
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The Bank sonsiders a debt security to have low credit risk when their credit risk rating s equivalent fo the globally
understood definitlon of ‘investment grade,

12-month ECL {12mECLs} are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financlal instrument that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Lifetime expectad credit losses (L' TECLs) are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Measurement of ECL

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the
nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporing period, of whether a
financial insfrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial racognition, by considering the change in
the risk of default oceurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument, This is further explained in note
38.1.2.

Based on the above process, The Bank groups its financial instruments info Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI,
as described below:

= Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, The Bank recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage
1 loans also include facllities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from
Stage 2.

= Stage 2: When a oan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, The Bank records an
allowance for the LTECLs, Stage 2 loans also include fagilifies, where the credit risk has improved and the
loan has been reclassifled from Stage 3.

« Stage 3: Loans considered credif-impaired. The Bank records an allowance for the LTECLS.

+ POCI: Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets ara financial assets that are credit impaired
on initial recognition. POC| assets are recorded at fair value at original recognition and interest income is

subsequently recognised based on a credit-adlusted EIR. ECLs are anly recognised or released fo the

extent that there is a subsequent change in the expected credit losses.

Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the Probability of Default {(PD), Exposurs at Default (EAD),
and Less Glven Default (L.GD), defined as follows:

PC (the Probability of Default) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default

may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised

and is skill in the portfallo.

EAD (the Exposure at Default) is an estmate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account

expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest,

whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on commitied facilities, and accrued interest
from missed payments.

LGD (the Loss Given Default) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default ocours at a given
time. [t is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lander would expect
to recelve, including from the realisation of any collateral, [t is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The PD, the EAD and the LGD are further explained In note 37.1.1

Resiructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renagotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is raplaced with a new
one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the financial asset should
be derecognised (refer to note 4.4.4) and ECL are measured as follows.

s |f the expacted restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expecled cash
flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing
asset.
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if the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair value of
the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the ime of its derecognition.
This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that arg discounted
from the expected date of darecognition fo the reporting date using the original effective Interest rate of the
existing financial asset.

Credit-impalred financial assefs

At each reporiing date, The Bank assesses whether financial assets carmried at amortised cost and debt financial
assets camied at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financlal asset Is “credit-impalred’ when one or more events that
have a defrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred, Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-Impaired Includes the following observable data:

L]

significant financizl difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

the restructuring of a loan or advance by The Bank on terms that The Bank would not conslder otherwise;

it is becoming probable that the borrower wilt enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for a securlty because of finandial difficultles.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition |s usually considered to be
credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving confractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment,

in making an assessment of whether an investment in sovereign debt is credit~mpaired, The Bank considers the
following factors,

The market's assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond yields.

The rating agencies’ assassmenis of creditworthiness,

The country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt issuance,

Presentation of alfowances for ECL in the statement of financial position

Allowances far ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

»

financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets;

debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in the statement of inancial position
because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the [oss aliowance is disclosed
and is recognised In the fair value reserve,

loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a provision;

When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitmants, The Bank astimates the expected portion
of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life, The expecied cash shortfalls
are discounted at an approximation fo the expeacted EIR on the loan.

where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and The Bank
cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn
component: The Bank presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined
amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component, Any
excess of the loss allowance cver the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a
provision;

The Bank's liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the income statement, and the ECGL
provision, For this purpose, The Bank estimates ECLs based on the present value of the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs The shortfalls are discounted by the
risk-adjusted interest rale relevant to the axposure. The ECLs related to financial guarantes
confracts are recognised within Provisions.
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Write-offs

Loans and debt securitles are written off {either partially or in full} when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when The Bank determines that the barrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to rapay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Bank's
nrocedures for recovery of amounts due.

4.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances on correspondent accounts with the Central Bank
of Mongolia and amounts due from other banks, which can be converted info cash at short notice, including highly
liquid investments maturing within 80 days from the date of acquisition that are readlly convertible inte known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost.

4.6 Amounts due from other financial institutions

In the normal course of business, the Bank mainfains advances or deposits for various periods of time with other
banks. Loans and advances o banks with a fixed maturity fterm are subsequently measured af amortized cost
using the effective inferest method. Those that do not have fixed maturities are carrisd at amortized cost based
on maturities estimated by management. Amounts due from cther financial instititions are camried net of any
allowance for impairment losses,

4.7 Trading assets and liabilities

"Trading assets and liabilities" are those assets and liabilities that the Bank acquires or incurs principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near tarm, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for
short-term profit or position taking, Trading essets and liabilities are initially recognised and subsequently
measuired at fair value in the statement of financial position, with fransaction costs recognised in proflt or loss.
All changes in fair value are recognised as part of net frading income in profit or loss.

I the normal course of business, the Bank enters Into various derivative financial instruments including futures,
forwards, swaps and options in the foreign exchange and capital markets. Such financlal instruments are held

for trading and are initially recognised in accordance with the policy for initial recognition of financial instruments

and are subsequently measured at fair vaiue. The fair values are estimatad based on gquoted market prices or

pricing models that take into account the current market and contractual prices of the underying instuments and
other factors. Derivalives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when it is

negative.

4.8 Loans and advances

Loans and advances are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments, which arise when the Bank
provides money directly to a debtor with na intention of trading the receivable.

Loans granted by the Bank with fixed maturities are initially recoghized at Tair value plus refated transaction costs.
Where the fair value of consideration given does not equal the fair value of the ioan, for example where the loan
is issued at lower than market rates, the difference between the fair value of consideration given and the fair
value of the loan 1s recognized as a loss on inltfal recognition of the joan and included In the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as losses on origination of assets. Subsequently, the loan carrying
value Is measured using the effective interest method. Loans o cusiomers that do not have fixed maturities are
accounted for under the effective Interest methad based on expected malurity. l.cans to customers are carried
et of any allowance for impairment losses.

49 [nvestment securities

The "investment securities” caption in the statement of financial position includes;
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s  debt investment securities measured at amoitised cost; these are initially measured at fair value plus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently at their amortised cost using the effeclive interest
method;

= debt and equity invesiment securities mandatorily measured at FVTPL or designated as of FVTPL; these
are at fair value with changes recognised immediately in profit or loss;

. debt securities measured at FVOCI; and
+  equity investment securities designated as of FYOCI.

For debt securities measured at FVOCI, gains and losses are recognised in OCI, except for the fallowing, which
are recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost;

« interest revenua using the effective interest method;
s ECL and reversals; and
« fareign exchange gains and losses.

When debt security measured at FVOCI s derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously resognised in
QCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Tha Bank elacis to present in OCl changes in the fair value of certaln investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading. The election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

Gains and losses on such equity instruments are never reclassified to profit or loss and no impairment is
recognised in profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless they clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of tha invesiment, in which case they are recognised in OCI. Cumulative gains and losses
recognised in OCl are transferred to retained earnings on disposal of an investment.

4.10 Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreemenis

Sale and repurchase agreements {(*repos”} are treated as secured financing transactions, Securities sold under
sale and repurchase agreements ara retained in the statement of financial position and, in case the transfaree
has the righ{ by contract or cusiom to sell or repledge them, reclassified as securities pledged under sale and
rapurchase agreements and faced as the separate balance sheet item. The corresponding liability is presented
within amounts due to financial institutions or customers.

Securitfes purchased under agreements fo ressll (‘reverse repo") are recorded as amwounts duse from other
financial institutions or [pans and advances to customers as approprizte and are not recognized in the statement
of financlal pasition, The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over
the life of repo agreaments using the effective yield method.

If assets purchased under an agreement to resell are sold ta third parties, the obligation fo return the securities
is recorded as a trading liability and measured at fair value.

4.11 Investment property

Tinvesiment property, which is property held to earn rentals andfor for capital appreciation, Is measured initially
at Its cost, including transaclion costs. Subseguent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at
historical cost modsl in accordance with |AS 40,

Rental income and operating expenses from investment property are included in revenue and other expenses,
respectively.

Gains or losses arising from changes In the fair value of Investment property are included in profit or {oss for the
pericd in which they arise.

412 Leasés

For any new cantracts the Bank considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as 'a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in
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exchange for consideration'. To apply this definition, the Bank assesses whether the contract meets three key
evaluations which are whether:

» the confract canfains an Identified asset, which is either explicilly identified in the contract of implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the assat is made available to the Bank,

» the Bank has the right fo obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
throughout the perlod of use, considering Ifs rights within the defies scope of the contract,

» the Bank has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, The Bank assess
whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpese’ the asset is used throughout the period of use,

Measurement and recognition of leases

Bank as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Bank recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet.
The right-of-use asset is measurad at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease lability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Bank, an esfimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end
of the Isase, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (nst of any incentives
received).

The Bank depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement datz to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the leass term. The Bank also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impalrment when such indicators exist, Leasehold improvements are capitalized and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and thelr useful Iives on a straight-line basis

At the commencement date, the Bank measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounfed using the interest rate Implicit in the leass if that rate is readily available or the
Bank's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments {including in
substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounis expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest, it
is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or If there are changes in in-substance fixed:
payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustmant is reflacted in the right-of-use asset, or
profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced {o zero,

The Bank has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assats using the practical
expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in reJation to these are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over tha lease term.

The Bank determines Hs incremental borrowing rate by analysing its borrowings from various external sources
and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of asset leased.

On the statement of financial position, right-of-use assets have been included in property, plant and equipment
and |ease liabilities have been included in the other liabilities.

Bank as a lessor

As a lessor the Bank classifies its lcases as either operating or financa leases.

Alease is classified as a finance lease If It ransfers substantially all the risks and rewards Incidental to ownership
of the underlying asset, and classified as an operating lease if it does not.

The commencement of the lease is the date from which the lesses is entitied to exercise its right to use the
leased asset. It is the date of initial recognition of the lease, Upon commencement of a finance lease, the Bank
recognise the net invesiment in the leases, which is the minlmum lease payments receivable discounted at the
interest rate implicit in the lease, The difference between the gross investment and its present value is recorded
as unearned finance lease income.
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Finance lease income is recognised based on pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of refurn on the net
investmenit in respect of the finance lease, {nitial direct costs are inchuded in the initfal measursemant of the lease
receivables.

When the Bank takes possession of finance lease assets under terminated lease condracts, it measures the
assets al the lower of net realisable value and amoriised historical cost of the inventery,

4,13 Precious metals

Gold and other precious metals are recorded at MB prices which approximate fair values and are quoted
according fo London Bullion Market rates. Preclous metals are included in other assats in the statement of
financial position.

Changes in the bid prices ars recorded in net gainfloss on operations with precious metals in other
income/expense.

4.14 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at historica! cost less accumulated depreciation. |f the recoverable value
of property and equipment is lower than its camying amount, due to circamstances not consldered to be
temporary, the respective assef is writien down to its recoverable value.

Depreciafion is calculated using the stralght-line method based on the estimated vseful life of the asset. The
following depreciation rates have been applied:

Useful life

{years} Rate
Buildings 40 2.5%
Comgputers 2 50.0%
Vehicles 10 10.0%
Other fixad asssts 10 10.0%

Leasehald improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives
on a straight-line basls. Assels undar the course of construction are accounted based on actual expenditures
less any impairment losses. Upan completion of construction assets are transferred to property plant and
equipment and accounted at their carrylng amounts, Assets under the course of construction are not depreciated
until they are ready for usage.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during
the period in which they are incumred. The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the
asset when 1t is incurred and when it satisfies the criteria for asset recognition, Major renovations are depreciated
over the remaining useful life of the related assst.

Gains and losses on disposals are detarmined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included in
operating prafit,

Land and buildings are revalued on a regular basis approximately after 3-5 years. The frequency of revaluation
depends on changes in fair value of assets. [n case of significant divergences between fair value of revalued
assets and their carrying amounts further revaluation is conductad. Revaluation fs conductad far the whole class
of property, plant and equipment. :

Any revaluation strplus is credited to the revaluation reserve for property and equipment included in the
revaluation reserve for property and equipment in equity section of the balance sheet, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in the statement of income, in which
case the increase is recognised in the statement of income. A revaluation defict is recognised in the statemant
of income, except that a deficit directly offsetting a previous surplus on the same asset is directly offset against
the surplus in the revaluation reserve for property and equipment.

Along with the usage of fixed assets, the difference of the calculated depreciation based on the revalyed amount
of the assst and caloulated depreciation based on the cost of the asset is transferred to retained earnings.
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In case of sale or write-off of fixed assets the balance relating to revaluation reserve of that fixed assets is totally
transferred to retained earnings.

415 Intangible assets
Intangible assets include computer software, Bicences and other.

Intangibsle assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets ara carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are emortised on a straight-line basis over the useful economic lives of 1 to 10 years and assessed forimpairment
whenever there is an indication that the infangible asset may be impaired. Amortisation periods and methods for
intangible assets with finite useful lives ara reviewed at least at each financial year-end.,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but tested for impaiment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The useful lIfe of an Intangible asset with an indefinite life Is
reviewad annually to determine whether indefinite Iife assessment continues to be supportable.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recorded as an expense as incumred.

- Software development cosits (relating to the design and testing of new or substantially improved software} are

recognised as intangible assets only when the Bank can demonsirate the technical feasibility of completing the
sofware so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,.
how the asset will generata future economic benefits, the availabillty of resources to complete and the abllity to
measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Other software development costs are recognised as
an expense as incurred,

4.16 Repossessed assets

The Bank’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used {or its internal operations or
should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to their relavant assat
category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carying value of the original secured asset. Assets for
which selling is determined to be a bstter option are transferred to assets held for sale at thelr fair value (if
financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at the repossession date in, line with the
Bank’s poficy.

In certain circumstances, assels are repossessed following the foreclosure on loans that are in default.
Repossessed assels are measured at the lower of cost and fair value less costs to sell,

4.17 Impairment of non<financial assets

Other non-financial assats, other than deferred taxes, are assessed at each reporting date for any indications of
impairment. The recoverable amount of non-financial assets is the greater of thelr air value fess costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of monsy and the risks
specific to the asset.

For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other asssts, the recoverable
amount is determined for the eash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognised
when the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit excesds its recovarable amount.

All impairment losses in respect of non-financial assets are recognised in profit or Joss and reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the resoverable amount. Any impairment loss reversed Is
only reversed to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the cerrying amount that would
have been detsrmined, net of depreciation or amortisation, If no impairment loss had been recognised.

4.18 Grants

Grants relating to the assets are includad in other liabllities and are credited to the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the expected fives of the related assats,
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4,19 Borrowings

Borrowings, which include amounis due to the Central Bank and Government, amounts due to financial
institulions, amounts due to customers, debt securities lssued and subordinated debt are initially recognised at
the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. Aiter initial recognition,
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognised as well ss through the amortisation process.

4.20 Financial guarantees and loan commitments

*Financial guarantzes” are contracts that require The Bank to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for 2 loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument, "Loan commitments” are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms
and conditions.

Financial guarantees issued or commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are initially
measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measurad at the higher of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with IFRS 9 and the amcunt initially recognised Iess, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
incomsa recognised in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15,

Liabilities arising from financial guarantees and [oan commitments are included within provisions.,

421 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resuli of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will he required to settle the
obligation and a refiable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.

4.22 Equity

Share capital

Ordinary shares and non-redesmable preference shares with discretionary dividends are hboth classified as
equity. External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, other than on a business combinalion, are
shown as a deducfion from the proceeds in equity. Any excess of the fair value of consideration received over
the par value of shares issued s recognised as additional paid-in capital.

Share premium
Share premium incdludes any premium recslved from the issue of shares. Any expense In respact of transaction
which is related to the issue of shares is reduced from the share premium,

Retained earnings

Include accumulated eamings of current and previous periods.

Treasury shares

Where the Bank purchases the Bank's shares, the consideration paid, including any attributable transaction
costs, net of income taxes, is deducted from tolal equity as treasury shares until they are cancelled or reissued.
Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received s included in equity. Treasury
shares are stated at weighted average cost.

Pividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equily at the batance sheet date only if they are
declared before or on the balance shest date. Dividends are disclosed when they are proposed before the
balance sheet date or proposed or declared after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
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Property revaluatfion surplus

The property revaluation surplus is used to record increases In the fair value of buildings and decreases fo the
extent that such decrease relates to an increase on the same asset previously recognised in equity.

Fair value reserve for investments securities at FVYOC!

This reserve records fair value changes in investment securities at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

5 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in confarmily with [FRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilifies, income and expense. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events
and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

5.1  Judgement
Classification of financial assets:

The Bank assesses the business model within which the assets are held and also assessas whether the
contractual temms of the financial asset are solely paymenis of principal and interest on the outstanding principal
amount (refer to note 4.4.2).

Establish criteria for calculating ECL

The Bank establishes the criteria for determining whether credit risk on the financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recegnition, determines methodology for Incorporating forward- looking Information into
measurernent of ECL. and selects and approves of models used to measure ECL,

5.2 Assumptions and estimations uncertainty

Measurement of fair values

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market
quotes are not available) end non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumpfions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument., Management bases ils assumptions on
chservable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case management uses the best
information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved fn an arm’s
length transaction at the raperting date.

Useful Life of proparty and equipment

Useful life evaluation of property and equipment is the result of jJudgement, based on the experience with simitar
assets. Future economic benefits are embodied in assets and mainly consumed along with usage. Management
evaluates the remalning useful life according fo the asset's current technical condition and estimated petiod,
during which the Bank expects to recelve benefits. For the avaluation of remaining useful life are considarad the
following main faciors: expectable usage of assets, depending on the operational factors and maintenance
program, that is depreclation arising from the changsas in the markset conditions,

Extension options for leases

When the Bank has the option to extend a leass, management uses Its judgement to determine whether or not
an option would be reasonably certain to be exercised. Management considers all facts and circumstances
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Including their past practice and any cost that will be incurred to change the assat if an option to extend is not

taken, to help them determine the lease term.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Bank assess of whether credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and incorporation of forward-looking information in the measurement of ECL, as wel! as tha key assumptions

used in estimating recoverable cash flows (refer to Note 4.4.6).

6 Interest and similar income, expense

In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Inferost income calculated using effective interast rate methoo
Loans and advances to customers 287,867,697 284,110,046
Pebt Insirument at FVOCI 68,363,262 66874415
Cash and balances at BoM 10,358,274 4 7'17 491
Swap interest income 7,047,692 2,857,018
Due from other banks and financial institutions 5.638.178 297 896
Reverse repurchase agreemen(s 165 858 27 912
Debt instruments at amortized cost 8,684,430 4,586,782
388,145 451 363,500,188
Other inferest and simifar income
Cebt instrument measured at FVTRL 8,620,643 4,804 139
Loans and advances to customears measured at FYTRL 463 785 17 169.602
8,784,428 21,973,641
Total interest incoma 404,929,819 385,473,829
Dus to customers (148,844,706) {163,871.037)
Borrowed funds (6,714,912} (7,201,098)
Due to other banks and financial Institutions (8,964,990} {7.011,837)
Repurchase agreements (8,756,981 ( 6,350,750)
Swap interest expanse (8,570,543} {5,880,838)
Interest expense on lease payables (Note 24) {7.572) {344,962)
Total interest expense {182,859,623) (190,640,521}
Total nat interast income 222070,298 164,833 308

in 2022, the government bond in which its change in fsir value is included in debt instruments at FYQCH, is MNT

11,169,148 thousand {2021: MNT 8,312,860 thousand).
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r 7 Fee and commission income and expense

In thousand MNT 2022 2021

.

Fes and commission income

Account service fes and commission 8,750,354 8,549,436
Card service fee and commission 12 B65 870 10,816,596
E-bank service fee and commission 9,749,506 7,331,789
Crodit related service fee and commission 2,297112 1,775,743
; Remittance fee and commission 469,876 580,043
b
Tolat fee and commission income 34,132,518 29,053,607
Fee and commission expenses
Bank service charges (3.535.927) (2,799,309)
Card transaction charges (5,092,595) (3,738,340)
Other commission expenses (199,891} (182,382)
Total fee and eommission expenses {8,825,413) (6,718,631)
£
? Net fos and commission income 25,304,105 22, 334,976
[
. & Net trading income
L tn theusand MNT 2022 2021
Foreign exchange gain, net 13,461,603 3,688,825
Debt secunties - 308,816
Total net trading income 13,461,603 4,006,641

Proceedings from debt securifies includes the results of trading of the purchase and sale of debt sacurities,
changes in their fair value, and correspanding interest income and expense, Foreign exchange income includes
gains and losses from spot and forward contracts and other financial derivatives.
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- 9 Other operating income/(expense)

In thousand MNT 2022 2021
{. Mon-trading foreign exchange gainf{icss), net (852,564} (246,812}
Impairment provision for repossessed collatarals (Note 1) {4,641,891) (3,553,750}
% ----- Modification Joss, nel - (13,930,880}
i Gther 2,935,149 889,698
[ Total other operating income/(expensa) {2,559,3086) {17,541,753)
[ 10  Credit loss income/(expense) on financial asseis
%.. _ Table below shows the ECL charges/{raversals) on financial assets for the year recorded in profit or loss:
{ : Msasran Terparesp 2022 2021
Cash and balances at BoM (Note 13, 14) 130,254 5,295
{ Loans end advances 1o customers (Note 16} {2.866,859} 30,434,785
L Drebt instrument measured af amaortized cost (Note 18) {771,399} 1,234,614
" Debt instrument measured at FVYOC] (Note 18) 217,033 (39.428)
{ Other assets (Note 19) {806,822} 377,624
Totfal (4,%57,793) 32,012,890
11 General, administrative expenses
L. in thousand MNT 2022 2024
-
i Salary and bonus 71,481,681 54,004,638
o Sacial security conirtbutions 9,028,526 7,832,996
Depreciation for property and aquipment {Note 22) 13,183,381 13,147,220
Insurance premium 5,082,122 6,230 639
Communication expenses 5,127,928 4,814,040
Depreciation of rght-of-use agsels (Note 24) 32 708 3,621,726
Advertlsing and markeling expensas 3,880,967 2.315.985
Utility expenses 2,391,206 2,157,383
Staticnery sxpenses 3,425,535 1,858,138
Securily expenses 1,481,822 1,278,679
Amortization for intangible asssts (Mote 23) 766,441 924,743
Business trip expenses 1,244,718 581,542
. Transpartation expenses 1,025,236 761,791
Audit and professlenal services fee 3,917,685 1,049,414
Lease expenses 5,714,442 727050
- Stale Bank J5C
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— Loss on disposal of fixed assets 223,802 174,792
Other fees and commlssions $.381,602 9,104,647
138,280,871

e Total general, administrative expenses 110,605,423

12  Income tax expense

Components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 Decamber 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

i-—' In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Currant tax: .

f - : Current incame Fax 23,083,873 14,700,127

[ N Deferred income tax 3,764,904 567,144
Total income fax expense 26,858,777 15,287,271

oy

The Bank provides for income taxes on the basis of its income for financial repeorting purposes, adjusted for items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes. The income fax rate for profits of the Bank is
10% for the first MNT 6 billion {2021: MNT 6 billion) of taxable income and 25% on the excess of taxable income
over MNT & billion {2021: MNT 6 Gillion), Interest income on government bonds is not subject to income tax.
Impairment losses for loans and advancss to customers are deductible for incoma fax purposes.

ity

e,

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to income
tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 Is as follows:

s

-~ In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Profit before tax 124,163,620 61,014,859
Tax at statutory raie of 25% (2021: 25%) 31,061,027 15,263,715
Expenses not dedustible from taxable income 5,451,440 3,265,618
Tax-exempt income (4,477,587} (2,078,240}
Effect of tax bracket (8,242,152} {1,692,850}
Tax at special rate 1,066,048 519,128

26,858,777

Tax expense 15,267,271

The effective income tax rate for 2022 is 22% (2021: 25%).

- Slate Bank JSC
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. - 12.1 Income tax payable

i In thousand MNT

oy
B !

sbe o,

i thousand MNT 2022 2021
Income tax payable as at 1 January 4,885,246 2,126,480
Income tax expense for the year 23,003,873 14,700,127
Taxas paid (26,782 984) {11,861,341)
Income tax payable as at 31 December 1,196,135 4,B85,246
12.2 Deferred tax

2022 2021
Deferred tax Habillties
1 January 2,815,761 3,910,382
Recognized in statemant of other comprehensive incame (Nole 30) {1.246,274) {1,661,765)
Recognized in statement of income 3,764,904 567,144
31 December 5,334,391 2,815,761
In thousand NMNT 2022 2021
Deferred tax labllity
Impairment (temporary ditferance) 3,764,904 567,144
Debt and equity instruments 1,569,487 2,248,617
Total 5,334,391 2,815,761

13 Cash and balances at Bank of Mongolia

In thousand MNT

31 Decamber

31 Decambar

2022 202

Cash on hand 50,185,617 45,780,309

Current account at BoM 676,357,622 205,185,650

Total 726,543,235 250,965,959

! Less: Allowanes for impairment losses on balances with BoM {148,082} (45,268}
Net cash and balances at BoM 726,396,277 250,920,691

Stata Bank JSC
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The mandatary reserve held at BoM are determined at not less than 8.0% (local currency) and 18.0% (fareign
currency} of customer deposits based on average balance of two (2) weeks. As at 31 December 2022, the
average reserves reguired by BOM for that period of 2 weeks were MNT 190,345 million (2021: MNT 168,815
miltion]) for local currency and MNT 61,719 milllon {2021: MNT 49,444 million} for foreign currency malintained on
current acgounts et BoM.

impairment allowznce for mandatory raserves with BOM

The table below shows the credit quallty and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Bank’s internal
credit rating system, 12-month PD range and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of
allowance for ECL. Details of the Bank's intemal grading system and impairment assessment and measurement
approach are explained in Note 37,

in thousand MNT 31 December 2022

Internal rating grada 12 manth Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tetal
g4 PD range g 2| g

AA - AA 0.002 - 0,022% - - - -

Baa -Pa 0.108 - 0.519% - - - -

B 237% 676,357 622 - - 676,357 622

Caa-C 12.00% - - - -

No rated - 00,185,617 - - 50185617

Total 726,543,239 - - 726,543,239

In thousand MNT 31 December 2027

Internal rating grade 12 month Stage 1 Staga 2 Stage 3 Tatal
99 PD range 9 2 g

AA = AA 0.002 - 0.022% . . - -

Baa-Ba 0.108 - 0.519% - - - -

B 2.41%-2.76% 205,185,650 - - 205,185,650

Caa~C 14.697% - - - -

Mot rated - 45,780,308 - - 45,780,309

Total 250,965,959 - - 250,965,959

A reconciliation of changes in gross camrylng amount and corresponding ECL allowances as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 is as follows;

31 December 2022

In thousand MNT Stage 1

Total ECL
1 January 2022 250,265,959 45,268
New asgsels criginated or purchased 40,135,616,087 345,342
Payments and assets deracognized {39,675,362,180) (243,648)
Accrued interest 144,233 -

State Bank JSC
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Foreign exchange adjustments 15,178,240 -
31 December 2022 726,543,239 146,962
Below table shows ECL movement for the year ended 31 Decembe 2021:
31 December 2021

Inthousand MNT Stage 1

Total ECL
1 January 2021 238,814,049 32,073
MNew assels originated or purchased 38,682,319,357 45,268
Payments and asseis derecognized (38,669,975,239} {39,073}
Accrued interest 205473 -
Foreign exchange adjustmeants (366 ,681) -
31 December 2021 250,965,959 45,268

14  Due from other banks and financial institutions

In thousand MNT

31 December

3t December

2023 2021
Due from foreign banks and financlal institutions 30,476,584 22,054,825
Placement with foreign banks armd financial instilution a5 cash cotlateral on
international card transaction 958,350 784,871
Due from local banks and financial institutions 200,132,479 5,607,520
Gross carrying amount 231,567,413 28,534,316
Less; Allowange for impalrment losses {28,581) .
Total due from other banks and financial institubions 231,538,852 28,534,318

Due from other banks and financial institutions represent lecal and foreign cumency current accounts matntained

at foreign and locat financial institutions,

15  Derivative financial instruments

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for ancther. Swaps
result in an economic exchange of currencies. The Bank's credit risk represents the potential cost to replace

the swap contracts if counterparlies fail to iulfil their obligation.

The aggregate contractual or national amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the aextant to which
instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets

and liabliitles, can fluctuata significantly from time to time.

The fair values of derivative instrumenis held are set out below,

Notional Falr value of Falr value of
In thousand MNT amount assets liabRities
Swaps
2022 104,385,600 14,978,687 (2,286,265)
2021 958,877,740 758,107 {1.545,920)
Starle Bank JEC
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F— Option .
2022 ' 580,110 54,746 -
2021 - - -

At their inceplion, derivatives often involve only a mutual exchange of promises with litle or no transfer of
consideration. However, these Instruments frequently involve a high degree of leverage and are very volatile. A
relatively small movement in the value of the assst, rate or index underlying a derivative coniract may have a

1 significant impact on the profit or loss of the Bank.
The bank has signed currency swap trading agreements with the Bank of Mongolia on 5 August 2022 and 31
. January 2021 which mature on 15 August 2023 and 2 February 23. Swap amounts are squivalent fo USD 23
million and USD 11 million, respectively.
In the option section, the MNT bonds of "Khan-Alfai" |L.C issued in the demestic market on 7 December 2022,
pegged fo the USD exchange rate, are included.
-
1 The Bank's exposure under darivative contracts is closely monitered as part of the overall management of its
market risk. Risk management strategy and how it is applied to manage risks are disclosed in Note 37.
r 16  Loans and advances to customers
..... 31 December 31 December
! In thousand NINT 2022 2021
b
Business loans £81,176,479 888,371,182
( Mortgage loans 260,706,562 194,488,825
Consumer loans 532,005,282 800,576,037
Agricultural loans 373,373,211 381,160,452
( 1,948,161,554 2,264,586,496
Allowanca for impaiment losses {191,274,581) {192,344,129)
Net [oans and advances to customers at amortized cost 1,756,886,973 2071352 367
[ Loans and advances to customers at FYTPL 111,738,529 165,894,981
i
Total | and advances to customers 1,868,626,502 2,237,147,248
Impairment aliowances for loans and advances to customers as of 31 Decentber 2022:
. In thousand MNT Business Joans Mortgage logns Consumer Agricuitural Total
loans lcans
1 January 2022 157,681,287 9,831,284 25,211,344 620,214 193,344,129
- New —assets orginated of 3,380,666 286,172 6,667,855 1,541,856 11,896,559
purchased
Payments and assels
. {34,104,469) {2420B859)  (14,534,459) (2,204,851} {53,273,668)
derecognized
] Impact on ECL. of transfers 34,049,833 870,141 5,924,689 2,229,274 44,078,937
i
Changes in assumptions (4,030,808} 20,998 (1,572,010} 13,133 (5,568,687)
State Bank JS¢
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Met charge {reversal) for the year

1,579,392 2,866,859
(Nots 10} {704,778) {1,252,548) {2,488,925) { )
Blsposal (2,503) - {109,364} {(2.941) (115,808)
ngn exchange and ~ ofner 801,220 44,064 §7,835 - 213,119
adjustments
31 December 2022 157,775,225 8,822,300 22,680,850 2,195,665 194,274,584
1 January 2021 126,057,444 14,290,714 22,336,766 307,003 182,992,017
New assets originated or
3,025,163 202,937 4,298,418 1,476,063 9,002,581
purchased
Payments and  aSSelS . sass58)  (1124327)  (14724770)  (1.985.137)  (49.179.782)
derecognized
Impact on ECL of ransfers 35,431,092 2,059,980 14,718,334 555,561 52,764,957
Changes In assumption 24,563,148 {5,598,020) (1,334,731) 218,644 17,847,039
Netcharge reversal) for the year o, 6o3843  (4,459,430) 2,957,251 313,121 30,434,785
{Mote 10)
Disposal - - (37,528} - {37,528) -
Forai ch
o.ra|gn exchange and other ) ) (45,145) . 145,145)
adjustments
31 Dacembar 2021 157,681,287 9,831,284 25,211,344 620,214 193,344,129

Business [pan

The fable below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Bank's internal
credit rating system, 12-manth PD range and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of
allowance for ECL. Details of the Bank's internal grading system and impairment assessment and measurement

approach [s set out in Note 37,

in thousand MNT

31 Cecember 2022

12 month

Internal grading system PD range Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Excellent (.02% - 8,38% 454,661,028 7.312,575 - 481,973,613
Good 0.07% - 8.4% - 16,580,728 - 16,580,728
Substandard 100% - - 11,233,680 11,233,680
Doubtiul 100% - - 13,054,900 13,054,900
Bad 100% - - 50,819,153 50,819,153
[ndividually impaired 100% 941,222 9,525,439 118,047,744 128,514,405
Total 455,602,260 32,418,742 193,155,477 681,176,479
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e In thousand MNT 31 December 2021
Internal grading 12 month
system PD range Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
T Excellent 0.001% - 8.400% 665,260,098 6,968,805 - 672,228,903
Good 0.002% - 4.628% - 12,408,084 - 12,409,084
Substandard 1004 - - 11,863,62¢ 11,863,620
Doubtfut 100% - - 14,018,841 14,018,841
Bad 100% - - 45,524 467 45 534 467
Individurally impaired 100% 964,665 12,108,483 119,252,10% 132,326,267
o Total 666,224, 763 31,487 382 190,659,037 888,371,182

A reconclliation of changes In gross carrying amount and corresponding allowance for ECL by stage for business
loans is as follows:

[ _ [n thousand MNT 31 December 2022
Internal grading system Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
f Total
E 1 January 2022 666,224,763 31,487,382 180,659,037 888,371,182
New assets criginated ar purchased 107,133,218 $00,000 2,800,000 110,833,218
T - Payments and assels derecognized (272,621,601) (7,715,190) {35,268,401} (315,605,182}
! Transfer to Stage 11,304,440 (6,319,155) {4,985,285) -
_ Transfer to Stage 2 {61,878,743) 61,878,743 - -
o Transfer to Stage 3 (3.998,272)  (37.316,058) 41,315,330 -
E Accrusd interest {824,830) 212,188 {176,322} {787,964}
Effect on restructure - - - -
I Disposal - - {2.503) {2.503)
l{_ . Foreign exchange and other adjustments 10,264,285 {10,709,168) {1,187,379} {1,632,262)
31 Decembar 2022 455,602,260 32,418,742 193,155,477 681,176,479
[{ : Allowance for ECL
t 1 January 2022 1,464,817 5,367,002 150,829,658 157,681,287
Neaw assels ariginated or purchased 535,666 45,000 2,800,000 3,380 666
[ Payments and assets derecognized {1,363,108) {385,759} {92,355,602) {34,104,469)
l . Transfer to Stage 1 3,014,762 {284,362) {2,730,400) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (2,784,543) 2,784,543 - -
- Transfer to Stage 3 (3.078,275) {7.463,212} 10,542,487 -
E{ Impact on ECL on transfers 3.014,782 2215820 28,813,251 34,049 833
Changes in assumptions 534,035 596,963 {5.261,606) {4,0:30,808)
{ ’ Charges for the year {127,701} (2,391,007} 1,813,830 (704,77B)
{ ' Disposal - - (2,503) {2.503}
Forelgn exchange and other adjustments - - 801,220 801,220
31 December 2022 1,356,918 2,975,995 153,442,315 157,775,226
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£ In thousand MNT

31 Dacember 2021

Internal rating grada Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tetal
Fotal
£ 1 January 2021 300,602,463 35,930,120 175,023,729 511,556,382
% N New assats originated or purchased 669,895,485 322,303 - 670,217,768
Payments and essets deracognized (249,807,021)  (11,955,909) {13,721,947) (975,488 877}
2 Transfer to Stage 1 48,596,852 (39,280,640) (10,367,912} -
Transfer to Stage 2 {102,985,694) 102,995,604 - -
Transter to Stage 3 (9,814,962) {54,885,230) 64,700,192 -
£ Acorued interest {948,075) {2,260,315) (217,674 {3,425,964)
Effect on restructure - - - -
Disposal - - - -
Foreign exchange and other adjusiments 9,684,015 £75.289 [24,757,451) {14,488,147)
31 Dacembar 2021 666,224,763 1,487,382 190,659,037 $83,371,182
Allowance for ECL
E" o 1 January 2021 8,381,971 6,812,621 110,962,852 126,057,444
P Mew assels originated ar purchased 3,025,148 15 - 3,025,163
Payments and assets derecognized (1.012,418) (11,168,830} {19,214,310) (31,395,558)
i Transfer o Stage 1 6,763,311 (1,765,379} (4,997,032 -
Transfer to Stage 2 {4,634,806) 4,524,808 - -
Transfer fo Stage 3 (4,232,396)  (10,883,533) 15,215,929 -
£ Impact an ECL on transfers 6,763,311 1,104,049 27,583,732 35,434,092
. Changes in assumptions {13.569,504) 16,733,253 21,385,397 24,583,146
Charges far the year (6,897,354) {1,445,619) 39,966,816 31,623,843
f Disposal . . . R
L . Foreign exchange and other adjustments - - - -
31 December 2021 1,484,617 5,367,002 150,829,663 157,661,287

,A_W.-,._..,

Mortgage loans

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Bank's internal
credit rating system, 12-month PD range and year-end stage classification, The amounts presented are gross

of allowance for ECL. Details of the Bank's internal grading system and impairment assessment and

meastrement approach is set out In Note 37.

-
{ In thousand MNT 31 December 2022
- - 12 4
Internal rating grade PDT:nng: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Totat
i Excellant 0.08% - 8.87% 251,220,774 366,110 - 251 586,884
Good 0.07% - 8.83% - 803,844 - 803,844
Substandard 100% - - 245789 2457499
. Doubtiul 100% - - 168,832 168,832
Dad 100% - - 7801203 7,801,203
i Individually impaired 100% - - . -
L Total 251,220,774 1,169,854 8,315,834 260,706,562
_
Siale Bank J3C
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In thousand MNT

31 December 2021

Internal rating grade ;%T:"n;: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Excellent 0.0M1% - 5.411% 183,043,895 204,251 . 184,148,246
Good 0.011% - 5.411% - 192,322 - 192,322
Substandard 100% - - 1,549,479 1,549,479
Doubtiul 100% - - 729,322 729,322
Bad 100% - - 7,889,456 7.889,456
Individually impaired 100% - - - -
Total 183,943,835 396,573 10,148,257 194,488,825

A recondiliation of changes in gross garrying amount and corresponding allowance for ECL by stage for mortgage

loans is as follows:

In thousand MNT

31 Decembar 2022

Internal ratinyg grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Total
1 January 2022 183,943,995 396,573 10,148,257 194,488 825
Mew assets orlginated or purchased 57,444 662 - - 57,444,662
Paymenis and assets derecognized {21,844,781) {83,836} {2,352 187) {24,280,804)
Transfer to Stage 1 1,028,388 {360,584} {687 .814) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (1,281,992} 1,281,982 - .
Transfer to Stage 3 - {285,336) 285,336 -
Accrued interest 15,481 4 A0 (257) 16,674
Effect on restructure - - - -
Dsposal - - - -
Foreign exchange and other ad|ustmenis 31,9i5012 216,694 902,409 33,034,205
31 Decomber 2022 251,220,775 1,168,953 6,315,834 260,706,562 -
Allowance for ECL
1 January 2022 523,245 73,047 9,234,992 9,831,284
New assets otiginated or purchased 286,172 - - 288,172
Faymaenis and assets derecognized {109,224) {4,192) {2,316,444) {2,429,860)
Transfer to Stage 1 448,247 {16,226} {429,991) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (57,689) 57,689 - -
Transfer 1o Stage 3 - (57,067} 57,067 -
Impaci on ECL on transfers 446,297 25,237 398,687 B70,141
Changes in assumptions {478,854) {45,976} 1,045 828 20,998 .
Charges for the year 32,839 (40,535) {1.244.853} {1,252,548)
Disposal - - . -
Foreign exchange and other adjustmenis 27,780 - 168,285 44,065
31 Decombor 2022 583,864 3Z,512 8,006,424 8,622,800
Siate Bank JBG
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In thousand MNT

31 December 2021

Internat rating grade Stage t Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Totai

1 January 2021 172,040,671 523,954 12,106,784 184,671,409
Mew assels criginated or purchased 53,157,571 63,936 1.212 53,222,719
Paymenis and assets derecognized {28,924,912) (285,534} {703,488) (29,913,934}
Transfer 1o Stage 1 6,891,732 (2,465,368} (4,428,364) -
Transfer io Stage 2 {6,562,434) 6,562,434 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (932,230) (4,909,170) 5,841,400 -
Accrued interest {25,979) {20,369} (15,583) (61,911
Effect on restructure {14,912,378) {8,517} - (14,920,893)
Disposal - - (2,849) {3,849}
Foreign exchange and other adjustments 3,211,982 935,207 (2,651,875) 1,495,264
3 Decembear 2029 163,243,995 396,573 10,148,257 154,488,825
Allowance fer ECL

1 January 2021 3,814,972 31,205 10,444,447 14,290,714
New assets originated or purchased 201,851 - 1,086 202,937
Payments and assels derecognized (113,882) (253,168} {787,177 (1,124,327)
Transfer to Stage 1 2,140,858 (110,942} (2,030,016) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (295,310) 285310 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 {753,522) (1,353,453} 2,106,975 -
Impact on ECL an transfers 2,140,958 73,4268 {164,404} 2,059,980
Changes in assumpiions {6,612,680) 1,390,579 {375,919} (5,538,020)
Charges for the year (3,291,727) 41,752 {1,209,455} {4.459,430)
Disposal - - - -
Foreign exchangs and other adjustments - - - -
31 December 2021 523,245 73,047 8,234,992 9,831,284

Consumer loans

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Bank's internal
credit rating systern, 12-month PD range and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of
allowance for ECL. Details of tha Bank's Internal grading system and impairment assessment and measurement
approach is set out in Note 37,

In thousand MNT 31 December 2022
[nternal rating grace ;:’Z:n::nnth Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ge

Excellent 0,02%-8.75% 600,716,138 81,514 - 800,797,652
Good 0.05% - 7.84% - 4,202,643 589 4,203,132
Substandard 100% - - 3,673,958 3,673,958
Doubtful 100% - - 4,033,229 4,033,229
Bad 100% - - 20,197,311 20,197,311
Individuzlty impaired 100% - - - -
Total 600,716,138 4,284,057 27,905,087 832,905,282
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In thousand MNT 31 Dacember 2021
Internal rating grade :"DT:: th Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
e

Excelient 0.001% - 8.400% 764,724,493 189,355 - 764,913,848

Good 0.001% - 8.400% - 3,405,384 237,106 3,642,490
i Substandard 100% - - 3,480,795 3,480,705

Doubtful 100% - - 8,501,107 8,801,107

Bad 100% - - 19,737,797 18,737,787
B Individually impaired 100% - - - -

Total 764,724,493 3,594,739 32,256,805 800,576,037

loans is as {ollows:;

. _ Araconciliation of changes in grose carrying amaount and comesponding allowance for ECL by stage for consumer

In thou;and MHNT

31 December 2022

- Internal rating grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Tatal amount
1 January 2022 764,724,493 3,594,739 32,256,305 800,578,037
e Mew assels origlnated or purshased 1,311 778,545 110,686 311,909 1,312,201,140
Paymenis and assets derecognized {1.443,041,923) (6,998,360) {10,504,239) {1,480,544 522}
Transfer 1o Stage 1 21,106,775 {17,267,947) {3.838,628) -
Transfer lo Stage 2 (38,577,619) - 36,538,041 39,478 -
Transfer 1o Stage 3 {86,499) {11,567,678) 11,664,177 -
Accrued interest 945,346 {19,171} {7,779} 919,396
Effect on restructure - - - -
[V Dispasal - - {109,364) {108,364)
Foreign axchange and other adjustments (12,124,080) {106,253) {1,907,072) {20,137.405)
i 31 December 2022 600,716,138 4,284,057 27,905,087 632,905,232
[ Allowance for ECL
1 January 2022 622,764 969,281 23,619,299 25,211,344
[f ' New assets originated or purchased 6,556,147 4,648 127,062 6,687,856
L Payments and assets derecognized (7.215,210) (339,885) (6,979,564) {14,534,459)
Transfer fo Stage 1 2,843,610 (¥77,0587) (2.086,553) -
Transfer fo Stage 2 (1,645,988) 1,658,686 (12,698) -
L.... Transfer {o Stage 3 (80,149) {2.330,942) 2,391,0H1 -
Impact on ECL on transfers 2,843,611 104,571 3,981,507 6,929,689
GChanges in assurnptions (3.624,103) 1,201,320 920,773 {1,572,010}
Charges for the year {372.082) (478,46 1) {1.638,382) {2.488,025)
Dispasal - - {109,364) {108,364)
Fereign exchange and other adjustments 28,646 - 39,189 67,835 '
e 3 December 2022 279,328 480,820 24,910,742 22,680,890
State Bank JSC
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In thousand MNT

31 Decembaer 2021

Internal rating grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Total amount

1 .January 2021 756,806,723 2,256,100 26,442,951 785,505,774
New assets originated or purchased 1,124,788,580 1,880,032 731815 1,127,380,627
Paymenis and assets derecognized (1,105,937,546) (2,703,197} (5,706,531} 1,114,347 ,274)
Transfer to Stage 1 12,725 366 {5,084,565) (7,640,801} .
Transfer to Stage 2 (27,052,624) 27,052,624 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (4,012,263) (20,015,287) 24,027,550 -
Agcrued Interest {1.441,938) (112,990) (52,184} {1,807,109)
Effect on restructure - - B -
Disposal - - {37.528) (37,528)
Foreign exchange and ather adjustments 8,868,145 322,022 {5,508,670} 3,681,647
31 Decernber 2021 764,724,493 3,084,739 32,256,805 600,576,037
Allowance for ECL

1 January 2021 4,694,106 142,459 18,560,191 22,336,766
Additions 3,849,379 110,091 338,948 4,298 418
Deductians {3,995,123) {5,116,510) {5.613,137) {14,724,770)
Transfer {o Stage 1 3,931,739 (255,808) (3,6¥5,933) -
Transfer to Stage 2 {1,394,967) 1,425,572 {30,605) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (1,124,708) (4,481,152) 5,605,860 -
Impact on ECL on transfers 3,031,739 93,9617 9,872,634 14,718,324
Changes in assumptions (8,269,401) 8,230,656 (1,295,986) {1,334,731)
Charges for the year (3,074,342) 826,812 5.201,781 2,957,251
Disposal - - {37.528) (37,528)
Foreign exchange and other adjustments - - {45, 145) (45,145)
31 Decembear 2021 622,764 965,281 23,619,299 25,211,344

Agricultural loan

The table below ilustrates the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Bank's
internal credit rating system, 12-month PD range and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are
gross of allowance for ECL. Details of the Bank's internal grading system and impairment assessment and
measurement approach 1s set aut In Note 37.

[n thousand MNT 31 Dacember 2022
12 month

Internal rating grade PD range Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Excallent 0% - 8.18% 366,016,270 - - 366,016,270

Good 0% - 9.16% - 3,191,769 - 3,191,769

Substandard 100% - - 1,663,465 1,663,465

Doubtful 100% - - 1,337,949 1,337,949

Bad 100% - - 1,183,778 1,163,778

Individually impaired 100% - - - -

Tatal 366,016,270 3,191,769 4,165,192 373,373,231
Slale Bank J3C
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In thousand MNT 31 December 2021
12 month

Internal rating grade PD range Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Excellent 0.001% - 3.630% 379,703,869 - - 379,703,869
Goad 0.001% - 3,630% - 256,810 41,758 297,268
Substandard 100% - - 282,972 282972
Doubitful 100% - - a02,344 502344
Bad 100% - - 373,99¢ 373,999
individually impaired 100% - - - -
Total 379,703,859 255,510 1,201,073 381,160,452

A reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and corresponding allowance for ECL by stage for

agricultural loans is as follows:

In thousand MNT

31 Decembrer 2022

Internal rating grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Total amount

1 January 2022 379,703,869 255,510 1,201,073 381,160,452
New assets originated or purchased 308,373,200 - - 08,373,200
Paymenis and assets derecognized {309,508,752) (3,501,499} {1,080,244} {314,080,495)
Transfer to Stage 1 7,736,296 {7,467 550} (268,746} -
Transfer to Stage 2 {17,302,204} 17,392,204 - .
Transfer lo Stage 3 - (4,129,598) 4,129,598 -
Accrued interest (3,484 B58} 195,398 42,038 (9,247,422)
Effect on restructure: - - - -
Disposal - - {3.941) {3.241)
Foreign exchange and other adjustments 588,718 447,304 145,414 %,181,437
31 December 2022 366,016,270 3,191,769 4,165,192 373,373,231
Allowance for ECL

1 January 2022 26,840 11,673 581,704 620,214
New assets originated or purchased 1,541,866 - - 1,541,866
Paymants and assets darecegnized 1,547,544} {175,075) {482,262) {2,204,681)
Transfer o Stage 1 415,182 {336,040) {79,142) -
Transfer to Stage 2 {782,549} 782,649 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 - (825,920) 825,920 -
Impact on ECL on transfers 415,182 110,570 1,703,522 2,229,274
Changes in assumptians {42,678) 530,530 574,719} 13,133
Charges for the year {B41) 186,714 1,393,319 1,579,392
Disposal - - {3.941) {(3,941)
Foreign exchange and olher adjustments - - - -
31 December 2022 26,199 108,387 1,971,079 2,195,665

Stalp Bank J5C
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= - in thousand MNT 31 Degember 2021
Internal rating grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Total amount
1 January 2021 359,624,664 51,768 572,385 360,248,817
L New assels originated or purchased 376,156,590 404,720 - 376,561,310
Paymenis and assats darecognized {354,333,389} {530,458) (343,746) (365,207,593}
Transfer o Stage 1 672,207 (340,200} {332,007) -
Transfer {o Stage 2 {2.025.494} 2,025,494 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (266,810} (1,156,068) 1,422,878 -
Acerued interest (230,529} 14,894 20,509 {195,126)
Effeci on restructure - - - u
Dispossl - - - -
. Foreign exchangs and other adjustmeants 106,630 {214,640} {138,946) (246,958)
' 31 December 2021 379,703,869 255,510 1,201,073 381,160,452
Allowance for ECL
1 January 2021 21,140 587 285,366 307,093
New assets originated or purchased 1,476,063 - - 1476 063
Paymenis and assets darecognized {1,401,778) {271,298} {262,061) {1,935,137)
Transfer to Stage 1 118,175 {15,305} {102,866) -
Transfer to Stage 2 {91,147} 91,147 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 ({65,368) {231,214) 296,582 B
. Impact on ECL on fransfers 118,175 50,529 376,847 555,651
E Changes in assumptions {148,420) 377,231 {12,167) 296,644
Charges for the year 5,700 11,086 296,335 313,121
Disposal - - - -
4 Forelgn exchange and other adjustments - - - -
- 31 December 2021 26,840 11,673 581,701 620,214

17  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

In theusand MNT

31 December

M December

2022 2021
Financial assets held for trading:
L. Cuated bonds at fair value 9,876,322 7,310,813
Quoted equilles at falr valee 1,020,411 -
10,896,733 7,310,813
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
L. Junior RMBS 62,065,399 44,059,005
Senicr RMBS £1,218,970 36,628,636
Junior ABS 1,638,404 156,931
L. Senior ABE pledged as collateral 3080174
128,002,947 80,844,572
Slate Bank JSC
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CQuuoted equltles represent investments in equity sharas quoted on the Mongolian Stock Exchange.
Quoted equifies indlude closed bonds of BID NBF| LLC and Khan-Altai LLC .

The bank has sold fixed rate mortgage loans to wholly owned special purpose companies of MIK Holding JSC
and received Senior and Junior "RMBS" are interest-bearlng long-term securities issued by MiK Holding J&C in
exchange, Junior "RMBS" are interest-bearing long-term securities Issusd by MIK Holding JSC which per the
Securities Law of Mongolia, are required 1o be held by commercial banks for at least 3 years.

Asset backed securlties {"ABS") represent Senior and Junior tranches of an interest-bearing, long-term securities
issued by wholly owned special purpose companies of Securities Financing Corporation LLC ("SFC"). The bank
transferrad fixed rate repurchase financed business loans to SFC with recourse and received the ABSs in
exchange.

18 Financial investments other than those measured at fair value
through profit or loss

3 December 3 December
In thousand MNT 022 2021
Debt instrument measured at FYOCE
Unquoted BoM treasury bills 517,515,755 737 541,744
Unqueotad BoM treasury bills pledged as collateral***** 250,771,781 88,014,208
Quoted government bonds at fair value 55,817,874 30,675,417
Quoled government bands at falr value pledges as collateral** 133,666,249 111,084,298
857,771,729 967,315,767
Eruity instrurment measured at FYQC!
Unquated equity ™ 120,468 118,385
Debt instruments measured at amortized cost
Quoted government bonds™** 68,223 498 67, 467 BEY
Senigr ABS - 318,930
668,223,495 67,786,597

** On 9 August 2022, the Bank has made agreement with FCC Securities B.Y in Netherland and cbtained LISD
23 million lcan which bears 4.46% interest and maturity date is 19 August 2023. As per agreement the bank
has pledged its quoted government bands at fair value with nominal amount of USD 42.5 million (2021: USD
36.8 mitlion).

*** Unquoted equities represant investments made in unquoted companies. Investments in unquoted equities
are recorded at cost as management determined the fair value cannot be measured reliably. The variability in
the range of reasonablz fair value estimates derived from valuation techniques s expected to be insignificant.
There is no market for these investments and the Bank does not intend to dispose of these investmenis in the
foresesable futlre.

= Quoted government bonds at amartised cost represent Erdenes Tavan Tolgol JSC's quoted bond with term
of 10% annual interest and matures at 2023 and 2024. Nominal values of bonds were MNT 67.0 billion.

=== Unguoted BOM freasury bills pledged as collateral represent collaterals for the repurchase agreement made
with Bank of Mongolia (Note 26).

Slate Bank JSC
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Impairment losses on financial investrments subject to impairment assessment
Debl instrument measwred at FVOC!

The table below shows the fair value of the Bank's debt instrurnent measured at FVOCI by credit risk, based on
the Bank's Infernal credit rating system, 12-month PD range and year-end stage classification. The amounts
presented are gross of allowance for ECL, Details of the Bank's internal grading system and impalmnent
assessment and measurement approach ars explained in Note 37.

In thousand MNT

31 Dacember 2022

12 month
Internal rating grade PD rangs Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Al - A 0002 - 0.022% - - - -
Baa - Ba 0.108 - 0.519% - - - -
g 2.37% 957,771,729 - - 957,771,729
Caa-C 12.00% - - - -
Not rated - - - - -
Total 957,771,729 - - 957,771,729
In thousand MNT 31 December 2021
Internaf rating grade 12 month Stags 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
g PD range
Ad A 0.002-0.022% - - - -
Baa - Ba 0.108 - 1.519% - - - -
B 2.41%-2.76% 967,315,767 - - 987,315,767
Caa—C 12.00% - - - -
Mot rated - - - - -
Todal 267,315,767 - - 367 315,767

A reconciliation of changes in the fair value and gross carrying amount and corresponding allowance fer ECL for
debt instruments measured at FVOCI and debt instruments at amortised cost respectively Is as follows:

31 December 2022

In thousand MNT Dekt instruments measured at Debt instrument measured at
FvocC| amuortized cost

Fair value ECL Fair value ECL

1 January 2022 967,315,767 1,014,264 89,021,211 1,234,614
Additlons 23,364,579,802 529,871 - -
Deductions {23,387,869,454) {312,839) (2,015,322) {771,398)
Changes in falr velue (Nots 35} (16,458,437) - - -
Accrued interest receivables 511,837 - 1,680,822 -
Foreign exchange adjustments 29,632,214 - - -
31 December 2022 957,771,720 1,231,296 68,686,711 463,215
Slate Bank JSC
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21 December 2021

Dabt instruments measurad at Dabt instrument measured at

In thousand MNT FVOC! amortized cost
Fair valua ECL Falr value ECL

1 January 2021 1,217.540,729 1,053,691 - -

Additions 17,996,656,501 260,176 67,340,389 1,234,814

. Deductions (18,242,157, 747) (299,604) - -
Changes in fair valua (Note 35) {6,610,210) “ - -

Accrued interest receivables 1,913,960 - 1,680,822 -

Foreign exchange adjustments {(37,498) - - -
31 December 2021 967,315,767 1,014,263 69,021,211 1,234,614

19 Other assets

e In thousand MNT 31 Dﬂﬂel;lg;é' k]| Der:m;:;;
Other financial assets
f Promissory notes £,236,600 7,436,601
L Other receivables 14,401,162 6,592,491
. Less: Allowance for impairment (12,621,477} (13,482,505}
l{ _ 8,016,285 646,587
" Other non-financial assets
B Repossessed collaterals 15,014,328 19,141,533
[ Lezs: Allowance for impaitment (13,685,082} {9,124,811})
1,328,246 9,988,722
[ Consumables and cther office supplies 3,380,201 2,849,608
E Prepaid sxpenses 8584075 7,633,295
. Non-current asset investment - 160,589
f[ 8,934,276 10,633,490
Total other assats 18,279,807 21,266,799
N In thousand MNT 31 December 31 Becember
: Impairment allowance on other financial assets
7 1 Jenuary 13,482,505 3,104,912
Charge for the year 533,083 758,206
Reversal (1,599,915) {420,582)
) Met charge for the period {Note 10) (866,822) 377,624
Write-off - -
Statg Bark J5C
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— Foreign exchange difference 5794 {31)

31 Becember ' 12,624,477 13,482,505

lmpalrment allowance on ofher non-financial assats

1 January 9,124 811 5,571,061
- Charge for the year 11,727,236 5,323,348
’:' Reversal (7,085,345} {1,769,598)
4
wet charge for the psriod {Note 9) 4,641,891 3,553,750
[ Write-off (81,620) -
" 31 December 13,685,062 9,124,811
{ Repossessed collaterals represent real estate assets acquired by the Bank in settlerment of ovardus loans. The

Bank expects to dispose of these assets in the foresseable future. Allowance for other non-financial assels relate
1o those repossessed collaterals.

[.. 20  Assets held for sale
[ In thousand MNT 31 Dacember o De“’ggze;
Buildings and real estate
1{ _ 1 January 6,762,299 4,593,811
o Additions 15,185,682 6,762,269
{ Less: Scld during the year (7,663,867) {3.421,465)
- Less: Transfer to repossessed collaterals (1,389,971) (1,172,148)
Balance on assets hald for sala 12.884 113 6,762,209
.. St
21 Investment property
L.
In thouwsand MNT # DBGE‘;‘E:; 3 Dme?g;{
o Investment property 2,848,500 2,364,878
Balance on invastment property 2,848,500 2,364,878

State Bank JSC
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— 22 Property and equipment
Computer .
- 0 Furnitura Construction
N In thousand MNT Building accesasr;::'[:}: Equlpment Vehlcle in progross Total
Costiravaluation
1 January 2021 80,797 181 35,986,698 37,632,553 8.483,324 5,271,661 168,171,417
- Addilons - 5,806,447 3,490,632 - 2,583,219 11,960,205
Disposal - (2.344,478)  (1,488,267) (29,044) - (3.861,789)
Seld “ - - - - .
Transfer from
e construction in 4,020,286 - 9,930 (4,930,226) -
orogress
Reclassificalion - - - - - -
Transfer to
investment propery {2,472,782) - - - - (2,472,782)
i {Note 21/
31 Decomber 2021 83,244,695 30,528,667 39,644,655 8,454,280 2,024,654 173,797,151
Addliions 9,584,278 3,182,462 080,000 2,755,702 15,613,443
_ Disposal (239,352) {2.016,825) {1.520,927) - - (3,947,104)
[ Sold
Teansfer from
construstian in 1,880,078 . - 1,880,078} -
progress
™ Rectassification - (955,703} 955,703 - {78,266) {748,266)
31 December 2022 84,885,421 46,140,417 42,093,094 2,544,280 3,722,012 185,385,224
» Accumulated
/ depreclation
1 January 2021 3,060,109 24,503,151 15,761,317 £201.625 - 48,576,202
?Nh;?$1f;:r the year 1,681,008 7,646,990 3,147,582 671,639 - 13,147,220
Disposal . {2.341,045) (1,316,908 {29,044) - (3,686,987)
[ Sold - - -
Transferred {o
investment property (14)7,904) - - - - (107,804)
- /Note 21/
[ 31 December 2021 4,633,213 29,809,096 17,581,992 5,844,220 - 57,878,521
g;‘;‘;g?f;" the year 1,741,074 7393,200  3,51337% 535649 - 13,183,381
» Disposal {15.451) {2.016,825) (1,690,926 - - (3.723,202)
[ 21 December 2022 8,258,833 35,185,561 19,414,437 6,279,869 - 67,338,700
Net carrying value
31 December 2022 78,528,588 10,954,858 22,678,857 2164 441 3,722,012 118,046,624
31 Dacamber 2021 78,611,482 9,719,571 22,052 863 2,610,060 2924654 115,918,630
1.
Sisle Bank JSC
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Buildings are carried at fair value. Mad these buildings been recognised under the cost mode! as at 31 December
2022, the carrying amount of land and bulldings would have been MNT 55,838 million {2021: MNT $5,245 millian).

23 Intangible assels

Land use

In thousand MNT Software Licenses rights Total
Costirevaluation

1 January 2021 3,441,853 8922184 1,071,930 13,435,576
Additions - 1,109,742 - 1,108,742
Dispozal {244,044) {717,549) - (261,583)
¥ December 2021 3,197,809 9,314,377 1,071,939 13,584,125
Addilions 832,700 243,647 - 1,076,247
Disposal - {18,074) - {18,074)
31 December 2022 4,030,508 9,539,850 1,071,939 14,642,298
Accumulated amortization

1January 2021 2,965,383 5,024,817 - 7,990,200
Charge for the year {Note 11) 247,115 677,628 - 924,743
Digposal {244,043) (747.550) - (961,593)
31 December 2021 2,968,455 4,984,695 “ 7,953,350
Charge for the year (Note 11) 83,199 683,242 - 766,441
Disposal - {18,075) - {18,075}
31 December 2022 3,051,654 5,650,062 - 8,701,716
Net carrying value

31 December 2022 978,855 3,889,788 1,071,939 5,940,582
31 December 2021 229,354 4,328,482 1,071,939 5,630,775

As of December 31, 2022, the Bank has no infangible assets pledged as collateral for liabilities or restricted
ownership rights.

24 Right-of-use assels and lease payables

The Bank has lease contracts for branch office spaces used in its operations. These leases on average have
lease term of three years. The Bank's obligations under its teases are secured by the fessor's litle to the leased
asssals.

The Bank also has certain leases of garages and ATM spaces with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases
of office equipment {such as computers) with low value. The Bank applies the 'short-term lease' and lease of
low-value assels' recognition exemptions for these leases.

Slate Bank JBCG
Financial Slaiemenls
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Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabllilles and the reconciliation of
movemenis during the year:

In thousand MNT nght':sf:';: payl-a?l::
1 January 2021 3,195,396 4,011,845
Additions 479,600 479,609
Depreciation charge far the yaar {(Note 11) (3,621,726} -
Interest expense {Note &) - 344,962
Lease payments - (4,501,869}
31 December 2021 53,278 234,557
Additions - -
Depreciation charge far the year (Note 11) {32,7086)

Interast expense (Note 6) 7,572
Leasa paymenis - {44,998)
31 December 2022 20,573 197,130

The maturify analysls of lease liabilitias are disclosed in Note 35. The Bank recognised rent axpense from short-
term leases of MNT 286,213 thousand and low-value assets of MNT 404,760 thousand for the year ended 31
Dacember 2022 (2021: MNT 623,774 thousand and 412,191 thousand, respsctlively}. Also, the Bank has incurred
variable lease payments of MNT 109,801 thousand for the vear ended 31 December 2022 (2021: MNT 318,474
thousand).

25 Due to other banks and financial institutions

31 December 31 Decamber
In thousand MNT 5092 2021
Current accounts from banks and financial institutians 41,998,833 39,956,999
Darmand deposits from banks and financial institutions - 5,743,468
Time deposits from banks and financial institutions 273,534,258 70,252,332
Total 315,533,001 115,952,799

At 31 December 2022, due to banks included current accounts and #me deposits from local and foreign banks
and other financial institutifons, At 31 December 2022, lime deposits includad deposit from foreign bank
denominated in USD with interest rate 1% to 4.5% per annum with maturity from 3 to 547 days, and deposits
from lecal financial institutions denominated in MNT with interest rates from 8% to 14.5 % {2021: 1% to 13.0%)
per annum and original maturity from 31 to 730 days (2021 90 te 730 days).

Stata Bank JEC
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26 Repurchase agreements

During its normal course of buslness, the Bank borrows and lends securities and may also sell securities under
agreements to repurchase (repos) and purchase securities under agreements to resell {reverse repurchase).

Securities lent and repurchase arrangements

The followlng table summarises the liability arising from the consideration received, including accrued interest
within cash collateral on securities lent and repurchase agreements, reflecting the transaction's economic
substance as a loan to the Bank:

31 Decembrer 31 December
In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Bank of Mongolia 253,049,417 87,820,042
FCC Securilies B,V 80,180,796 65,988,651
Total 333,230,213 153,800,683

The Bank conciuded a short-term and leng-term repurchase agreemsent with the Bank of Mongolia on 31
December 2021, and sold MNT 87.8 billion unquoted securities of the Bank of Mongolia with an interest rate of
7.0% and 6.5%.

The Bank entered into a one-year repurchase agreement with FCC Securitias B.V fram Netherland on 8 August
2021. Under this agreement FCC Securities B.V has pravided State Bank with USD cash in return for government
of Mongofia treasury bills under repurchase agreement. The Bank entered into a long temn and overnight
repurchase agreements of MNT 253.0 billlon with the Bank of Mongolia.

27 Due to customers

[n thousand MNT 3 Decenz-l;);; 3 Dece";g;;
Government
~Current account 464,183,811 296,776,418
- Demand deposit - 21,279,539
- Tirne deposit 21,747,047 14,120,430
Private sector
-Current accaunt 108,807,545 121,768,002
= Demand deposit 110,871 9,224 680
- Time deposit 60,377,487 42,230,491
- Guarantee fund 7,665 224 10,853,114
Individuals
-Current account 238,690,526 239,725,382
- Demand daposit 250,275,008 373,514,054
- Time deposit 1,687,502,996 1,727,195,924
Total 2,749,360,513 2,856,758,045
Stale Bark JSC
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28 Borrowed funds

fn thousand MMT H Decar;lgzag # Decer;;:ze;
- Berrewed funds from government organizations
Ministry of Finance 53,910,044 80,240,910
Bank of Mongalia 81,207,288 84,184,700
o Ministry of FinancadJapan Bank for inlernationat Cooperation 21,442,253 26,508,649
{{ Cradit Guaranies Fund of Mangaliz/Asian Development Banlk 16,543,162 18,007,564
h Labor Service Center/Genter for Employment Service 18,432,366 5,130,812
SME Development Fund o 1,131 ;428 o 18?8%20 ’
Mongolien Mortgage Corporation LLC 208,300 408,176
Other 41,969,300 35,036,698
Total borrowed funds 234,934,137 252,378,321

The above borrowings are unsecured,

Mest of the borrowing agreements require compliance with certain debt covenants, which can be grouped into
the following categorles:

= capital related ratios (such as risk weighted capital adequacy tier | capital ratio, ratio between tier |
capital and total capital);

» financial risks related ratios {such as aggregate foreign currency open position, single currensy foreign

[ exchange risk ratio, liquidity ratia);

% »  credit related ratios (such as single largest borrowers to the equity ratio, retated party lending ratio and
aggregate large exposures ratio);

+  other ratios {(non-current assets to total assets, non-performing loans o total loan ratio, efc).

In case of non-compliance with covenants e.g., if the Bank defaults, a borrowing becomes immediately payable
on dernand. For {his reason, the Bank monitors compliance with the BOM prudential ratios and other debt
covenants an a monthly basis through the Planning and Analysis Division.

The Flnance Department compares the Bank's performancea results against ratio requirements and presents

the resuit to the Asset and Liability Committes. As of 31 December 2022, the Bank has no breach of covenants
that would reguire immediate repayment of the borrowings.

- 29  Other liabiiities

31 Dacembar 31 December
In thousand MNT 2022 2024
Payables and accrued expensas 14,751,755 8,322,777
Delay on clearing settlement 11,556,870 6,991,748
i
Cither £1,846 533,453
Total other Labllities 26,360,480 15,847,976

Detay on clearing settlemenrt account and card payables related to the amount of payables on cash and
setllements services. Related balancaes were fully settled on next working day.

T
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30 Ordinary share, other reserves and dividends
30.1 Ordinary share

As of 31 December 2022, the bank's registered, issued, circulated and statutory fund are MNT 188,774,162.5
thousand. According fo the bank's charter, the share/statutory fund conslsts of MNT 755,096,250 crdinary shares
with a nominal value of MNT 250 each.

Ordinary share

Number of shares unless otherwise stated

2022 2021
Shares authorized and issued 755,096,250 178,000
Mumber of crdinary shares (MNT 1,000,000 per share) - 178,000,000
Number of ordinary shares {MNT 250 per share) 188,774,083 -

As of 31 December 2021, the Bank had 178,000 ordinary shares with nominal value of MNT 1,000,000 each.

At the Shareholders’ Meeting on 30 June 2022, a decision was made to split the ordinary shares of the Bank at
a ratio of "1:4000" and offer additional 43,006,250 shares to the public, thus the number of ordinary shares
increased from 178,000 to 755,086,250 shares, which is increased by 754,918,250 shares,

The nominal value of one ordinary share was changed from MNT 1,000,000 to MNT 250..

30.2 Earnings per share

In calculating earnings per shara, net profit is divided by the number of ordinary shares for the year.

31 December 31 December
In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Net profit for the year 97,284,843 45,747 588
Number of ordinary shares 755,086,250 178,000
Earnings per share 0.129 257.0

30.3 Share premium

31 December 31 December
In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Share premium 14,852,725 -
Total 14,652,725 -

Slata Bank JSG
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30.4 Other reserves

Social Assat
In thousand MHT Development Resfzr:s FVQCI raserve revaluation To::;:::\:sr
Fund reserve
1 January 766,804 603,669 5,241,714 22,668,025 29,368,212
Disbursement of Sccial
Development Fund {37,950) N ) - {37.850)
Amorfization - - - (79,3583} {¥9,353)
Met change in fair value of .
debt instruments_at FYOCI ) B (16,498,437} (16,498,437)
HNet change in ECL
allowances for debt
instrumants at FVOCI ) ) 217,033 - 217,033
{Note 10}
Deferrad tax through other
comprehensive Income - - 1,248,274 - 1,246,274
{Note 12)
31 December 2022 728,854 693660 (9793,416) 22,586,672 14,215,779
Soclat Asset
In theusand MNT Development RBS;:‘:: EVOCireserve revaluation Torl:;::‘:\:sr
Fund reserve
1 January 804,182 693,669 10,229,587 22,666,025 34,393,463
Disbursement of Social
Development Fund (37.378) B ] B (37,375)
Amartization - - - . -
Net change In falr value of
debt instruments at FVOCH - - (6.610.210) . (6.610,210)
Net change in ECL
allowances for debt
instruments at FVQQC! B B {30.428) i (39,4286)
(Mots 10}
Deferred tax through other
comprehensive income - - 1,661,765 - 1,66%.765
(Note 12}
31 December 2021 766,804 693,669 5,241,714 22,566,025 20,368,212
31  Additional cashflow information
In thousand MNT 2022 2024
Cash balances at BoM (Mote 13) 726,642,239 250,065,959
Due from other banks and financial institutions {Note 14) 231,538 852 28 534,316
Unqguoted BoM treasury bilis — less than thres months 450,766 A01 737 541 744
Total cash and cash equlvalents 1,408,348,492 1,017,042,019
Less: Mandatory reserve at BoM noet available to finance bark's day to day
operations (Nota 13) (252,084,041) {218,258,855)
Slate Bank J5C
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Less: Placement at foraign bank and financial institutions as cash collateral in

international sard transactions (Note 14) {958,350} (784,971}
Met cash and cash equivalents 1,155,826,101 767,968,193
Reconcifiaticn of the liabilitles arising from financing activities is shown below:

In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Borrowed funds

1 January 252,376,321 227,021,274
Cash mavameant

Proceads 611,697,875 274,843,524
Repayment {636,050,626) {250,173,749)
Interest paid {6,456,396) (6,383,780)
Non-cash movement

Medification gain - {890,005)
Amortized interest - 863,345
Interest expense for the year 6,714,812 7,201,088
Foreign exchange difference 6,752,051 [5.388)
31 December 234,934,137 252.376,321
Lease payables

1 January 234,557 4,011,845
Men-cash additions - 479,608
Interest expense 7.572 344,962
Interest porlian of lease payables paid (7.572) {344,962)
Principal portion of lease payables paid {37,427) {4,256,897)
31 December 197,130 234,557
In thousand MNT 2822 2021
Maodification loss on financial assets - 14,920,894
Madificalion gain on financizl liabilities - (990.005)
Net modificaiion loss - 13,930,889
Amertised interest on modification loss - (11,292,902)
Amortised interest on modification gain - 863,345
Net interest amortisation from modiflcation - {10,429,557)
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32 Contingent liabilities and commitments

fn the normal course of business, the Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in
order to meet the needs of its customers. These instruments, involving varying degrees of credit risk, are not
reflected In the statement of financial position,

As of 31 December, the nominal or contract amaounts were:

In thousand MNT 2022 2021

Credit related commitments and contingent llablitles

Uncovered bank guarantees 3,057 910 3,341,729

Letters of credlt 90,277 593,238

Undrawn cormmitments to lend 4,300,508 10,148,186
7,448,695 14,083,153

Capital related commitments

Froperty and equipment 587,686 1,778,543

Total contingent liabilities and commitments 8,036,381 15,862,696

Contingent liabilities

Guarantees commlt the Bank to make payments on behalf of customers in the event of a specific act, generally
related to tender and bid auction. They generally carry the same risk as lovans even though they are of a
contingent nature.

Commitments

Commitments to extend credit represent contractual commitments tc make loans and revolving credit.
Commitments have fixed expiry dates or other termination clauses, Since commitrnents may expire without being
drawn upon and reguire the customer to mest specific requiraments, the total confract amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements.

33 Contingencies

Tax and legal matters

The taxation system in Mongolia is relatively new and is characterised by frequent changes in legislation, official
pronouncements and court decisions, which are sometimes unclear, contradictory and subject to varying
interpretation. Taxes are subject to review and investigation by tax authorities, which have the authority to impose
fines and penaltiss.

Management believes that the Bank has complied with all regulations and has completely settled all its tax
liabilities.

Management also belleves that the ultimate [iability, if any, arising fromt legal actions and complaints taken against
the Bank, will not have a materlal adverse impact on the financial condition or results of future cperations of the
Bank.

Asg of 31 December 2022, there were no legal actions and complzints taken against the Bank.
Therefore, the Bank has not made any respective provision refated to such tax and legal matters.
Insurance

The insurance industry in Mongolia is in a developing state and many forms of insurance protection common in
cthar parts of the world are not yet generally available. The Bank doas not have full coverage for business
interruption, or for third party liability in respect of property or environmental damage arising from accidents on

Slate Bonk JBCG
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Bank property or retating to Bank operations. Until the Bank obtains adequate insurance coverage, there is a risk
that the loss or destruction of ceriain assets could have a materjal adverse effect on the Bank's operations and
financial position.

34  Transactions with related parties

In aceordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosuras, parties are consldered to be related if ong party has ability
to conirol the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational
decicions. Far the purpose of the present financlal statements, related parties include shareholders, members of
Bank's Management as well as other persons and enterprises refated with and controlted by them respectively.

A number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business. These
include loans, depasits and other transactions, These fransactions were carried out on commerclal terms and at
market rates.

Transactions with key management parsonnel of the Bank

The aggregate remuneration of directors and members of the Board of Directors during the year, paid by the
Bank, was as follows:

In thousand MINT 2022 2021
Short-tarm bBenefits:

Salaries and other allowances 790,898 2,051,986
Coniribution to secial and health fund 158,778 ao9R,702
Bonus and other benefits 487,281 1,018,716
Total 4,436,958 3,469,404

Transactions with directors and key management

In thousand MNT 2022 201
Loans 1o key management 1,463,172 2,950,450
Deposits from key management 7,478,050 10,524,547

Key management have banking relationships with the Bank which are entered inte in the normal course of
business and on substantially the same terms, including interest retes and security, as for comparable
transactions with other persons of a simifar standing or, where applicable, with other employees. These
transactions did not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavourable features.

The loans and advances to key managsment wers sacurad, bore interest ratas from 5.0% to 28.8 % (2021: 5%
to 36%) per annum and are repayable within 1 o 20 years. The interest income received from such leans during
the financial yaar amountad to MNT 58.9 million (2021: MNT 107.0 miliion).

The deposits from the key management bore interest rates from 0.0% to 12,3% (2021: 0.0% to 10.2%) per
anrumn. The inferest expensas paid to the deposits from key management during the financlal year amounted to
MNT 13.7 million (2021: MNT 25.6 million).

Transactions and balances with shareholders

As of the end of the reporting year, the Bank has made the following major transactions with the Bank's
shareholders within the scope of its normmal business activities. Below Is the batance as of 31 Dacember 31.
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I thousand MNT 2022 2021
Peposits and current accounts (26,526,745) (12,244,245}
Borrowed funds (53,510,044} (80,210,910}
Quoted government treasury bills 189,484 223 141,759,715

The deposits and current accounts hore interest rates are nil {2021: nil) per annum. No interest expense was
paid on these accaunts during the financial year {2021: nil).

The borrowed funds bore interest rates from 3% to 7.3% (2021: 1.5% to 7.3%) per annum, The interest expenses
recognised on such funds during the financial year amounted to MNT 4,343.0 million (2021: MNT 3,570 million).

Transaction and balances with the Bank of Mongolia

Balance as at 31 December is as folfows:

In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Current accounts at BoM {Note 13) 676,357,622 205,185,650
BoM freasury bills (Note 18) 766,287,505 §25,556,052
Borrowed funds (the 28} {81,207.236] (54,194,?00)

Inferest income and expenses recognized during the year with Bank of Mongolia were as folfows:

In thousand MNT 2022 2021

imerest income:

Cumrant accaunts at Bol (Nols 13} 10,358,273 4717491
BoM treasury hills (Nate 18) 54,884,418 56,737,058
65,242,691 61,454,849

Interest expense:

Borrowed funds (Note 28) 626,770 843,259 - -

Transaction and balances with other government entities

The balance as at 31 December is as folfows;

In thousand MNT 2022 201
Due to custamers {459,387,089) (319,951,784)
Barrewed funds - -
Bue to other banks and other financlal Institutions (31,993,104) {14,730,849)
Quoted govermnment bonds 668,223,496 67,457,867
Seniar ABS - 318,930
Junior ABS “ 156,831
Cther assets: Receivables 6,236,601 7,436,601

interest income and expenses recognized during the year with other government eniities is as follows:

State Bark JSC
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In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Interast income:

Quoted government bonds 5,584,430 4,586,182
Senior and Junior "ABS" _ 36,201

Interest income and expense recognized in the transacilons with other government entities during the financial
year amounted to nil and MNT 3,224 million {2021: nil and MNT §,890 million}, respectively,

35 Fair value measurement

The Bank’s Risk Management Committee determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as unquoted trading and investment securities measured at FVOG!, unguoted derivatives,
investment property [and buildings] and for nan-recurring measurement, such as assets hsid for sale

At each reporting date, the Risk Management Committee analyses the movements in the values of assets and
ltabilites which are raquired to ba re-measured or re-assessed as per the Bank's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Risk Management Commitiee verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing
the information in the valuation sompufation to contracts and other relevant documents. The Risk Management
Committee, in conjunction with the Bank's external valuers, alsc compares each the changes in the fair value of
each asset and liability with refevant extemal sources to determine whether the change Is reasonabls.

Financial and non-iinancial assets and liabilities measured at fair value are presented below in accordance with
the fair value hlerarchy. This hierarchy groups financial and non-financial assets and liabilities into three levels
hased on the significance of inputs used in measuring the fair value of the financial agsets and liabilities. Ths fair
value higrarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusied) in aclive markets for identical assets or liabifities

~ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Leve! 1 that are observable for the asset and liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices} orindirecily {i.e. derived from prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or llability that are not based on observable market data (Unobservable inputs).

Amounts due from and ta financial instihtions

For assets and liabilities maturing within one month, the camrying amount approximates fair value due to the
relatively short<term maturity of these financial instruments. For the assets and Eabilities maturing in aver one
month, the fair value was estimated as the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
appropriate year-end market rates, which are mainly the same as current Interest rates.

.oans and advances to customers

The fair valug of floating rate instruments is normally their carrying amount. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest rate instruments is based on estimated future cash flows expected to be received discounted at current
interest rates for new instrumenrts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity. The fair value of the impaired
loans is calculated based on expected cash flows from the sale of collateral, The value of collateral is based on
appralsals performed by independent, profassionally qualified property appraisers.

invesiment securities measured at amortised cost

Markat valugs have been used to determine the fair value of invastment securities measured at amortised cost
traded ¢on an active market. For securities that are not fraded on an active market, the falr valus was estimated
as the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the year-end market rates,

Siale Bank JEC
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Due to financial institutions and customers
The fair vatue of deposite from financial institutions and customers is estimated using discounted cash flow

techniques, applying the rates that are offered for deposits of similar maturities and terms. The fair value of
deposlts payable on demand is the amount payable at the reporting dats,

35.1 Financial instruments that are measured at fair value

In thousand MNT 31 Decembar 2022

Level 1 Levei 2 Leve| 3 Total
Financial assets
Debt instruments measured at FVYOCI:
Unquoted BoM treasury biils - 768,287,505 - 768,237,505
Quoted government bonds al fair value 189,484,223 - - 189,464,223
Equily instrumenis measured af FYOCE
Unqueted equilies at cast - - 120,488 120,466
Financial assals held for lrading:
Quoted equities al fair value 9,876,322 1,020,411 - 10,896,733
Financial assefs al fair value through profit or loss:
Junior RMBS - - 62,065,399 62,065,398
Senior RMBS - - 51,218,970 61,218,970
Junior ABS - - 1,838,404 1,638,404
Senlor ABS - - 3,080,174 3,080,174
Loans and advances to customers at FVTPL - 111,739,529 - 111,738,528
Dervative financial Instruments - 15,034,433 - 15,034,433
Non-financlal assets
Revalued assets “ - 78,526,567 78,526,587
Investment property - - 2,848,500 2,848 500
Total 199,366,545 896,081,878 209,498,500 1,304,940,923
Financial lfability
Derivative financial instruments - 2,286,285 - 2,286,268
Total - 2,286,265 - 2,286,265
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2 D ber 2021
In thousand MNT 31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Leve| 3 Total
Financial assets
- Debf instrumenis measured gt FYOGC!:
Unguoted BoM treasury bills - 825,556,052 - 825,556,052
[q Quaied government bonds at fair vajue 141,759,716 - - 141,758,715
s Equity instriiments measurad at FVOCHK:
7 Unquaoted equities at cost . - 118,385 118,385
Financial assets held for trading:
CQluoted equitios al falr velug 7,310,813 - B 7.310,813
-
Financial assets at falr value thraugh profit or loss:
Junior RMBS - - 44,059,005 44,058,005
- Senior RMBS
- - 36,628,636 36,628,636
Junior ABS - - 156,831 186,934
Loans and advances to customers at
- FVTPL - 165,894,891 - 165,894,891
Derivative financial instruments - 759,107 - 759,107
MNon-financial assets
) Revalued assels - - 78,611,482 78,611,482
f tnvesiment properly - - 2,364,878 2,364,878
Total 149,070,528 992,210,050 161,939,317 1,303,219,895
Financial liability
Derivative financial instruments - 1,548,920 - 1,549,920
Total - 1,549,920 - 4,549,920
[ There have been no transfers between levels 1,2 and 3 in the reporting period.
- The methods and valuation technigues used for the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged compared

1o the previous reperting period.

[ Quoted investmenis

- All the listed securities and bands have been issued by publicly traded companies in Maongolla.

Unguoted debt securities

The fair value of unquated debt securities at FVOC! is measured using a valuation technique, which uses current
market rates to discount future cash flows of the finandial instruments.

Unguoted equity investments

""" For determining the fair value of unguoted equity instruments the Bank uses a combination of market and income
approaches. The market approach and the income approach are common valuatfon techniques for equity
investments that are not publicly traded. Under the markst approach, the Bank uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable securities, Under the income
epproach, future amounts are converted into a single present amount {&.g. a discounted cash flows model). The
market approach is preferred as the main inguts used are typically observable.
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Derivatives

Where derivatives are traded either on exchanges or liquid over-the-counter market the Bank uses the closing
price at the reporting date.

Nommally, the derivatives entered into by the Bank are not traded in active markefs. The fair values of these
contracts are estimated using valuation technigues that maximises the use of chservable markst inputs, eg.
market exchange rates (Level 2). Most derivatives entered into by the Bank are included in Leve! 2 and consist
of foreign currency forward contracts. A few of the Bank's derivative positions in foreign currency forward
contracts are classified within Level 3.

The description of valuation technigue and description of inputs used in the fair value measurement for
level 2 measurements at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Fair vajue
In thousand MNT Va!ua_ilon Inputs
technique
2022 2021
Financial assats
. Marlket value .
Unguated BoM treasury bills 768,287,505 825 556,052 approach Markst price
e N Miarket value .
Quoled equities at fair value 1,020,411 - approach Market price
nterest rate Policy rate,
Derlvalive financia! instruments 16,034,433 769,167 arity analysis LIBOR rate,
parky 4 exchange rale
Loans and advances o customers at FVTPL 111,739,528 165,894,981 Ma’::;r“:;gﬁ Markst prics
Financial liabilities
Folicy rate
[nterest rate ’
- 2 2B6,265 1,548,920 . LIBOR rate,
Derivafive financial instruments parity analysis hange rale

There were no changes in valuation technique for level 2 recurring fair value measurements during the years
ended 3 1 December 2022,
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The sensitivity to reasonably possible changes to inputs used in the fair value measuremant for level 3
financial instrument is described below:

31 December 2022

In thousand MNT Sensitivity of .
. Reasonable Valuation Observable
Fair value change fnput t:;[i]; tachnique Inputs
Financial assets
i Market value ,
Junior RMBS 62,065,389 1% +- 820,654 approach Markeat price
. Market valus .
Senior RMBS 61,218,970 1% +H- 612,190 spproach Market price
. Market value .
Junior ABS 1,638,404 1% +- 16,3684 approach Market price
. Markel valus
Senior ABS 3,080,174 1% +f 30,802 approach Market price
. Market valus .
Ungquoted equity 120,465 1% +- 1,205 approach Market price
Nonfinancial assets
Markel value Markst p:g;
Revajued sssets 78,526,587 10% +- 7,852,658 approach : ;';: depreciated
replacement
approach cost
Gost Depreciated
Investrment property 2,848,500 10% +/- 284,850 approach rap[acergl;::
31 December 2829
In thousand MNT gt
Fair valua Reasonable s'::sl?t' :2!;.;: Valuation Observable
change P valus technigue inputs
Financial assets
. Markeat value .
Junior RMBS 44 059,005 1% +f- 440,590 appraach Market price
. Market value .
Senior RMBS 35,628,636 1% +f- 366,286 approach Markast price
Market valus .
Junfor ABS 156,931 1% + 1,569 approach Market price
. Market value .
Senior RMBES [ 1% +f- 30,802 approach Market price
Market value .
Unquoted equities 118,385 1% +H-1,184 apbroach Market price
MNon-fimancial assets
Market price
Market value and
Revalued assels 78,611,482 0% +/- 7,861,148  approach and depreciated
cost approach 1eplacement
coslt
Depreciated
; Market value
Investment praperties 2364 B78 10% +- 236,488 approach raplacen;g::
State Bank JSC
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Movements [n falr value measuremant within Leve! 3 durlng the year are as follows:

Inthousand MNT 2022 2021
Junior RMB3
1 January 44,069,005 37,231,214
Additians 13,837,100 5,305,600
Accrued interest receivables, nat 4,169,294 1,522,191
31 December 62,065,399 44,059,005
In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Senior RMBS
1 January 36,628,636 4,753,243
Additions 124,532,400 50,373,400
Sold (102,928,200} {18,940,900)
Accrued interest receivables, net 2,988,834 442 Bg3
31 December 61,218,970 36,628,636
In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Junior ABS
1 January 156,931 -
Additions 1,459,500 154,400
Sold - -
Accrired inlerest, net 21,973 2,531
31 December 1,638,404 156,931
In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Unguoted equities
1 January 118,385 199,658
Foreign exchanga difference 2,081 {1,273)
31 Dacember 120,466 113,385

Slale Bank J3C
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a In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Senior ABS

. 1 January - .
Addlions 7 262 500 j
Solg {4,222 500 -

o Accrued interest recsivables, net 40,074 -
31 December 3,080,174 -
In thotsand MNT 2022 2021

Revaluad assefs

e i,

1.Januvary 78,611,482 77,737,072
Additions - 2,447,514
Depreciation charged in profit or loss {1,725,620) (1,573,104)
Disposal (239,353) -
31 Dacember 76,646,509 78,611,482
In thousand MNT 2022 oH 2021 oH

Invesiment properiy

1 January 2,354 B7R -
Additions ] 2,364,878
Revaluation surplus 483 622 -
31 December 2,848,500 2,364,378

Set out belew is @ comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Bank's financial instruments in the
finandial statements where there is a difference betwean the two values.

31 Decamber 2022

In thousand MNT
Carrying amount Fair value
Financial assets
Loans and advances to customers 1,756 886,973 1,854,263,116
Quoted govermnment bonds 68,223,496 68,223,498
L Total 1,825,110,469 1,922,486,612
Financiatl assets
Borrowed funds 234934 137 234,934,137
Total 234,934,137 234,934,137
State Bank JSC
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In thousand MNT

31 December 2021

Carrying amount Falr value

Financlal assets

Loans and advanges to cuslomers

2,071,252,367 2,056,954,538

Quoted government bonds 87,467,667 67,467,667
Senior ABS 318,930 318,930
Total 2,139,038,964 2,124,741,135

Flnancial hiabillties

Burrowed funds

252,376,321 252,376,321

Total

252,376,321 252,376,321

36 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of financial assets and liabilties analyzed according to when they are
expecied to be recavered or settizd. Refer to Note: 37.3 for the Bank's contractual undiscounted repayment

cbligations.

I thousand MNT

31 December 2022

B T Tota
Assets
Cash and cash equivalenis at BoM 726,398,277 B 726,396,277
Due from banks and financlal insfifutions 231,538,852 - 231,538,852
Derivativa financial instruments 15,034,433 - 15,034,433
Loans and advances to custometrs 220,324 444  1,648,302,058 1,968,626 502
Financlal assels held for trading 10,896,733 - 10,896,733
) FII";;II‘:EI;l assels at fair value through profit or loss - 128:005,94? MMMM‘EE;,GUZ,QH
ﬂ:g:n i:strumants at fair value through other comprehansive 802,511,961 154,859,768 957 774,720
iEng:i;lyeinstrumants at fair vakie through other comprehensive R 120,466 420,468
Debt instrumenis at amortized cost - 68,223,496 68,223,498
Other assets 18,279,807 18,279,807
Assets held for sale 12,894,113 - 12,894,113
Investmant property - 2,848,500 2,848,500
Property and equipment - 118,046,524 118,045 524
Infanglble assets B 5,940,582 5,940,582
Right-of-use assets - 20,573 20,573
Total assets 2,038,276,620 2,126,364,914 4,164,641 534
Flnancial lizabifities
Cue 1o gther banks and financial institutions 275,314,281 40,218,810 315,533,041
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— - Due to customers 1.849,227.620 900,132,893 2,749,360,513
Repurchase agreements 244 ABG,683 B8,743,530 333,230,213
Derivative financlal instituifons 2,288,265 - 2,286,265
- Borrowed funds 104,437,806 130,496,241 234,934,137
Other liabibties 18,330,649 7,029,831 26,360,480
Lease payables 187,130 197,130
— Inzome tax liabilities 1,196,135 - 1,186,135
Deferred tax liabilities - 5,334,391 5,334,391
Total 2,496,476,6569  1,171,905,606 3,668,432,355
Net* {458,200,039) 954,409,218 495,209,179
r ) 31 Decembeor 2021
[ In thousand MNT Less than More than Total
: 12 months 12 months
- . ' Assets
i Cash and cash equivalents at BoM 250,920,591 - 250,920,691
Due from banks and financlal institutians 28,534,316 - 28,534,316
{ """ Derivative financial instruments 759,107 - 759,107
{_ B Loans and advances {o customers 249,277,745  1,987,869,603 2,237,147,348
Financlal assets held for trading - 7,310,813 7.310,813
{ B Financial assets al fair vajue through profit or loss - 80,844,572 80,844,572
azl;:nigslmments at fair value through ather comprehensive 838,882,914 128,432,853 967,315,767
{ ﬁgiéﬁveinstruments at fair valite through other comprehensive ) 118,365 118,385
i.. " Debt instruments at amortized cost 471197 57,315400 67,786,597
Other assals 11,280,077 9,086,722 21,266,799
Assets held for safe 8,762,299 - 6,762,200
{ Investwment proparty - 2,364,878 2,364,878
" Property &nd equipment - 115,918,630 115,918,630
o ' ' Intanpible assets - 5,630,775 5,630,775
L Right-of-use assels 53,279 - 53,279
- Total assets 1,386,941,625 2,405792,631  3792,734,256
{ Flnancial liabllities
- Due to other banks and financial institutions 115,673,485 279,304 115,852,798
Due to customers 2.494,486,129 362,311,918 2,858,798,045
{ Repurchase agreamenis 153,809,603 - 153,809,693
) Derivative financial institutions 1,543,220 - 1,548 920
P Borrowed funds 128,950,809 123,425,512 252,276,321
t Other liabilities 7,037,031 8,810,945 15,847,976
""" Lease payables 234,557 - 234,557
Income tax llablitles 4,865,246 - 4,865,246
Deferred {ax lichilities - 28157681 2815761
- Total 2,906,606, 850 497,643,438 3,404 250,318
2 Net* {%,519,665,255)  1,908,149,193 388,483,938
_— Stata Bark JSC
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* Certain classifications of financial assets and liabilities are based on contractual obligations. However, the Bank
axpects that the majority of its customers wili not reguest repayment on the sarliest date the Bank could be
required to pay and the table does not reflect the Bank's expected cash flows indicated by the Bank’s deposit
retention histary,

37 Risk management

The Bank’s activities expose 1t to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptanca and management of some degrae of risk or combination of risks.

Risk is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and moenitoring, subject to risk limits
and other controls, This process of risk management is eritical to the Bank’s continuing profitability and each
individual within the Bank is accountable for the risk exposures relating te his or her responsibilities. The Bank
is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and markst risk, the latter being subdivided inte trading and non-trading
risks. It is alsc subject io operating risks.

The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the environment,
technology and industry. They are monitared through the Bank's strategic planning process.

Risk management structure

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk policy
and credit policy which speclfy risk appetite and tolerances.

Board Risk Management Commitiee ("BRMC™)

The Board Risk Management Commities assists the Board of Directors in menitoring and controlling the risk
exposures of the Bank. The BRMC sets the comprehensive risk management approach and approves the risk
strategies and principles that establish the objectives guiding all the Bank's activities and fraplement the
necessary policies and procedures.

Risk Management Committee ("RMC")

RMC is responsible for anticipating and managing new and ongoing financial risk across business depariments
and maintaining appropriate limits on risk taking, adequate systems and standards for measuring operational
risk, credit risk and performance, comprehensive risk reporting and management review process, Two levels of
risk management comemltiees operate at the bank: the central RMC and the branch level BMC.

Internal audit

Risk management processes throughout the Bank are audited annually by the internal audit function, which
examines both the adequacy of the procedures and the Bank's compliance with the procedures. Intemal audit
discusses the results of all assessments with management and reports its findings and recommendations to the
BOD and BRMC.

Executive Management Committee
The Executive Management Commitiee consists of all the executive management of the Bank. The Committee

is responsible for developing internat guidance, policy and procedures on averall risk management, forming
internal control system and ensuring uniform performance throughout the bank.

Asset and Liability Committee ("ALCQO")

ALCQO is responsible for providing centralized asset and liability management of the funding, and efficient
management of maturity and interest rate for sustainable growth of the Bank,
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The Bank's Treasury is responsible for managing its assets and liabilities and the overall financial structure. It is
also primarily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Bank. The Bank's policy is that risk management
precesses throughout the Bank are audited annually by the Internal Audit function, which examines both the
adequacy of the procedures and the Bank's compliance with them. Internal Audit discusses the resuils of all
assessments with management, and reports its findings and recommendations to the BOD.

Credit cornmitiees

It is the credit decision making body of the Bank and operates within clearly defined parameters authorised by
an internal policy. The committees have the following main functions:
«  Review of the quality, composition and risk profile ofthe entire credit portfolio on an cngoing basis;
»  Approval of limits of credit exposures fo each sectors and geographical regions;  Approval of credit
procedures;
*  Approval of credit classification and provisioning;
»  Approval of credit applications.,

The Risk Management and Credit policy Department is responsible for ensuring the management and
implementation of the Banl’s risk policy in all level through its divisions with specific responsibilities defined
below:

Cperational Risk Management Division

The operational risk management division is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related policies
and procedures to ensure an independent control processes,

The division is respensible for monitoring compliance with operational risk principles, identifying, measuring
operational risk exposures and ensuring that contingent commitments ars within risk management and reporting
sysiem.

Business Risk Division

The main responsibilities of credit risk rmanagement division are as folfows;

(i To conduct credit risk analysis and research;

{ii} To perform independent risk assessments for credit applications to determine the degres of credit
risk involved;

{iii} To monitor loan portfolio and make recommendations to diversid' loan portfolio by sectars and

geoagraphical reglons;

{iv) To mitlgate risk exposures of the Bank's [oan portfolio using various tools.

Risk measurement and reporting system

The Bank's risks are measured using a method which reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in nonnal
circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual [oss based on stafistical
models. The models make use of probabilities derived from histericat experience, adjusted to reflectthe economic
environment,

Monitoring and controlling risks are primarily performed based on limits established by the Bank. These limits
refiect the business strategy and market environmert ofthe Bank as well as the level of risk that the Bank is
willing to accept, with addltional emphasis on selected Industries. In addition, the Bank monitors and measures
the overall risk bearing capacity in relation to the aggregate risk exposure across all risk types and activities,

Information compiled from all the businesses is examined and processed in order to analyse, controf and identify
early risks. This information is presented and explained to the BOD, ALCQ, Risk Management and Credit
Committees, and the head of sach business depariments, Tha reports include the aggregate cradit exposurs,
credit metric forecasts, Valueat-Risk (VaR)}, liquidity ratios and risk profile changes,

Both ALCO and Risk Management Commiltee recelve a comprehensive risk report evety quarter which is
designed to provide all the necessary information to assess and conclude on the risk exposure of the Bank. Bi-
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weekly briefing is presented to the ALCO on the utifisation of market limits, analysis of VaR and liquidity, and any
other risk developments.

Far all lavels throughout the Bank, specifically tailored risk reports are preparad and distributed in order to
ensure that all business divisions have access to extensive, necessary and up-to-date information.

A daily briafing is given to the Managament Board and all other relevant employees of the Bank on the utilisation
of market limits, analysis of VaR, proprietary investments and liquidity, plus any other risk developments.

Risk mitigation

As part of its overall risk management, the Bank uses derivatives and other instruments to manage exposures
resulting from changes in interest rates, forsign currencies, equity risks, credit risks, and exposures arising from
forecast transaciions.

The Bank actively uses collateral to reduce its credit risks (see below for more detail).

Excessive risk concentration

Goncentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activilies, or activitles In
the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, politicat or other condifions. Concentrations indicate
the retative sensitivity of the Bank’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical
location.

In order to avold excessive concentrations of risks, the Bank's policies and procedures include specific guidelines
to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed
accordingly.

37.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank willincur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their
contractiral obligations, Tha Bank manages and confrols credit risk by carefully screening credit applications,
setting interest rate adjusted for risk level, and setting limits on credit exposures for individual counterparties and
industry, and monitoring exposures In relation to such limits.

The Bank has established a eredit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in
the creditworthiness of countarparties, including regular collateral revisions, The credit quality review process
aims o allow the Bank to identify,' and assess the potential losses as a result of the risks to which it is exposed
and take early corrective actlons.

The Bank regularly examines and improves credit policies and procedures to keep its lending activities in line
with the best practice.

37.1.1 Impairment assessment

The references below show where the Bank's impairment assessment and measurement approach is sef outin
this report. It should be read in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting polictes (Refer to Note
4.48),

tncrease in credit risk

Al each reporfing date, The Bank assess whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, The Bank use the change in the risk of a
default occuning over the expectead life of the financial instrument instead of the change In the amount of expected
credit losses.

The bank considers bath quantitative and forward-looking qualitative criteria in order to assess whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred,
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However, when information that is more forward-looking than past due status (elther on an individual or a
collective basis) is ot available without undue cost or effort, The Bank use past due informalion to determine
whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition,

Criteria for loans and advances fo customers

The criterla for Loans and advances to customers are presented in the following paragraphs. All presented
criteria have the same weight in determining a significant increase in credit risk.

30 days past due. More than 30 days past due is an indlcator of a significant increase in credit risk.

Past due - other than 30 days. Significant increase In credit risk is considered when although at the reporting
date, days past due are less than 30, during the last 6 months thers was of least one case of more than 60
days past due.

Relative change in 12-month PD. A significant change in 12-month PD is considered as factor of changes
in lifetime PD, This is indicative of a significant Increase in credit risk. This criterion is used when The Bank
has an internal credit rating system.

Relative change in lifetime PD. A significant change in lifetime PD is indlcative of a significant Increase in
credlt risk. This criterlon is used when The Bank has an internal credit rating system

Default {'stage 3} during the last 12 months. Significant increase in credit risk is considered when although
af the reporting date the outstanding amount of the faciBly is not classified as defaull, during the last 12
months it was of least once in stage 3.

Loans in the probation period. Significant Increase In credit risk is considered in case of a forborne performing
loan or forbome naon-performing loan, which is in the probation period (period after cure period). wherein,
the loan should not have overdue days of more than 30 days or any indication of an unlikeliness o pay.

Criferia for amounts due from financial institutions

The criteria for credit institutions and other financial corporations are presented in the following paragraphs., All
presented criteria have the same weight in determining a significant increass in cradit risk.

30 days past due. More than 30 days past due is an indicater of & significant increase in credit risk,

For correspondent and current accounts 7 days' pas due, More than 7 days past due is an indicator of a
gignificant increase In credit risk.

Fast due - other than 30 days. Significant increase in credit risk is considered when although at the reporting
date, days past due are less than 30, during the last 6 months there was of least one case of more than 60
days past due,

Change notches external credit scoref rate. For this criterion, the corperate rating will be taken into account.
A significant change notches in the credit score assigned by the Big Three credit rating agencies (Standard
& Foar's, Moody's, and Fitch} is indicatlve of a signfficant increase in cradit risk. A signlficant increase in
credit rigk is taken into account when the S & P rating goes down each time by one level, started from B2
{S&P) {or the equivalent of Moody's and Fitch). In cases where a financlals institutions don't have & corporate
rating In a rating agency and The Bank does not have an equivalent internal rating system, the corporate
default rate corresponding to sovereign rating of the country is taken into consideration.

Relative change in 12-manth PD_ A significant change in 12-month PD is considered as factor of changes
in lifetime PD, This is indicative of a significant increase in credit risk. This criterion is used when The Bank
has an Internal credi rating system.

Relative change in lifetime PD. A significant change in lifetime PD is indicative of a significant increase in
credll risk. This crilerfon s used when The Bank has an el credil raling sysiem

Default {‘stage 3"} during the last 12 months. Significant Increase in credit risk is considered when although
at the reporting date the oulstanding amount of the facility is not classified in default, during the last 12
months it was of least once in stage 3.

Criteria for investment securifies

The criteria for securities are presented in the following paragraphs. All presented criteria have the same waight
in determining a significant increase in credit risk.
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Relative change in 12-month PD. A significant change in 12-month PD is considered as factor of changes
in lifstime PD. This is Indicatlve of a significant Increassa in credit risk. This criterion is used when the Entity
has an internal credit rating system.

Relative change in lifelime PD, A significant change in lifetime FD is indicative of a significant increase in
credit risk. This criterion is used when the Entity has an internal credit rating system

Change notches external credit scoref rate. For this criterion, the country’s rating will be taken into accotint
government securitles or corporate rating will be taken inte account for corporate securities. A significant
change notches in the credit score assigned by the Big Three credit rating agencies (Standard & Poor's,
Moody's, and Fiteh} is indicative of a significant increase In credit risk. A significant increase in credit risk is
taken into account when the 8 & P raling goes down one level each time, beginning with B2 (S&P) {or the
equivalent of Moody's and Fitch). In cases where an issuers of securities don't have a corporate rating in a
rating agency and The Bank does not have an equivalent internal rating system, the corporate default rate
carrespanding to soversign rating of the country is taken into consideration.

Exit criteria from significant deterioration stage

If none of the indicators that are used by The Bank to assess whether significant increase in cradit risk has
occurred, is present, transfer from stage 2 to stage 1 is performed, with the exception of forborne loans for which
a probation period is used.

Credit risi grades

The Bark allocates each exposure to a credil risk grade based on a variety of data that is determined to be
pradictive of the risk of default and applying exparienced credit judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using
qualitative and quantitative (primarily driven by days past due: Nof overdue financial assels are defined high
grade, overdue less than 30 days — standard grade, overdue more than 30 days and lsss than 80 days -
substandard or low grade and overdue more than 80 days — non-performing grade) factors {hat are indicative of
risk of default. These factors vary depending on the nature of the exposure and the type of borrawer.

The {able below shows the Bank's rating system and external rating.

Internal rating Internal rating description International rating (S&F)

A Excellent AAA-A,

B Good Baa-Ba

C Substanciard B

[} Coubtful Caa-C

E Bad -
Not rated Not rated -
ndivichually impaired Individually impaired -

Coliective or individual assessment

The Bank calculates ECLs sither on a collective or an individual basls. Asset classes whers the Bank
calculates ECL an an individual basis include:

*

Individually significant loans of Stage 3, regardless of the class of financial assets
The large and uniqle exposures

The treasury, trading and interbank relationships such as Due from Banks, Securities pledged under
repurchase agreements and debt instruments at amaortised costfFVOCI

Exposuras that have been classified as POC!I when the original loan was derecognised and a new loan was
recognised as a result of a credit driven debt restructurdng.

Those assets for which ECL does not calculated individually the bank groups into segment an the basis of
shared cradit risk characteristics as described below.

Type of loan (for example, corporate, mortgage, credit card, consumer loan, efc.)
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= The type of customer (for example, a physical person or legal entity or by Industry type),
« Typs of collateral {for example, property, recelvables, etc.),
s Currency

« Qther relaevant characteristics.

Definition of defaulf and cure

The Bank considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations
in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

The Bank considers interbank balances defaulted and takes immediate action when the required intraday
payments are not seftled by the close of business as outlined in the individual agreements.

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Bank alsc considers a variety of
Instances that may indicate unlikefiness to pay When such events ocour, the Bank carefully considers whether
the event should result In freating the cusiomer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL
caleulations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate. Such events include;

+ |awsuit, execution or enforced execution in order to collect debt,

» license of the borrower Is withdrawn,

= the borrower is a co-deblor when the main debior is in default,

» multiple restructurings on one exposure,

+ there are justified concerns about a borrower's future ahility to generate stable and sufficient cash flows,

» the borrower's overall leverage level has significantly increased or there are
justified expectations of such changes to leverage; equity reduced by
50% within a reporting period due fo Josses;

» debf service coverage ratio indicates that debt is not sustainable
» loss of major customer or tenant,
» connected customer has filed for bankruptey,

» restructuring with a material part which is forgiven (net present value (NPV)
loss),

s credi Institution or leader of consortium starts bankrupteyfinsolvency proceedings

Itis the Bank's policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when
none of the default criteria have been present for at [east three consecutive months, The decision whether to
classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade, at the time of the cure,
and whether this indicates there has been a significant increase in credit risk compared to initial recognition. The
Bank's criterion for ‘cure’ for ECL purposes is less stringent than the 12 manths' requirement for forborne non-
performing exposures.

Modified loan

The Bank sometimes makes concessions or modifications to the criginal terms of loans as a response to the
borrower's financial difficuities, rathar than taking possession or fo otherwise enforce collection of collateral. The
Bank considers a loan forborne when such concessions or modifications are provided as a result of the borrower's
present or expected financial difficuliies and the Bank would not have agreed to them if the borrower had been
financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficuties include defaults on covenants, ot significant concerns raised
by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance may invclve extending the payment arrangementis and the
agreement of new loan conditions. Onca tha terms have bean renegotiated, any Impaiment is measured using
the original EIR as calkeutated before the modification of terms. It is the Bank’s policy to monitor forbormne loans to
help ensure that fufure payments continue to be [kely to accur,

Detecognition decisions and classification between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are determined on a case-by-case
basis.
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The Bank defines the "cure” period as a 12-month pericd after farbearance, which is applied for forborne non-
performing exposures. Given the fact that it is impossible to determine financial difficulties immediately after
forbearance, it is necessary to use the "cure” period to determine whether the loan was effectively cured, All
forborme non-performing loans must remaln at stage 3 after the forbaarance date, despite the behavior of the
loan (no overdue days, etc.).

The Bank defines the probation period as 24-month pericd after "cure” period, which is applied for forborne
performing exposures {excluding any grace paried). Once an asset has been classified as forborne petforming
exposures, it will remailn farborne for a minimum 24-month probation perlod.

In order for the loan to be reclassified out of the forborme category, the customer has to meet all of the following
criteria:

v Al of its facllities has to be considered performing
» The probation period of two years has passed from the date the forborne contract was considered performing

» Regular payments of more than an inslgnificant amount of principat or interest have been made duwring at
least half of the probation pertod

» The customer does not have any contract that is more than 30 days past dua.

i medifications are substantial, the loan is derecognised, as explained in Note 4.4 4,

Probability of Default (PD)

Tne PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on Its financial cbligation, either aver lhe next 12
months (12mECL), or over the remaining lifetime (LTECLS) of the obligation.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profife to the current 12M PD. The maturity profile locks at
how defaults develop on a portfelic from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime of the loans. The
maturity profile is based on historical observed data and Is assumed to be the same across all asssts within a
portfolio and credit grade band. This is supported by historical analysis,

Loss given default (LGD)

LGD is determined based on the factors which impact the recoveries made post default. These vary by product

type.

= For secured products, this is primarily based on collateral type and projected collateral values, historical
discounts to market/book values due to forced sales, ime to repossession and recovery costs observed.

» For unsecured products, LGD's are typlcally set at product level due ta the limited differentlation In recoveries
achieved across different borrowers. These LGDs are influenced by collection strategies, including
contracted debt sales and price,

Exposure at default (EAD)

The 12-month and lifelime EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile, which varies by
product type.

« For products with contractual terms, this Is based on the contraciual repayments owed by the borrower over
a 12-rmonth or lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted for any expected overpayments made by a borrower.,
Early repaymentfrefinance assumptions are also incorporated into the caleulation.

« For revolving products, the exposure at default is predicted by taking current drawn balance and adding a
“credit conversion factor” which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining limit by the fime of default.
These assumptions vary by product type and current limit utilization band, based an analysis of the Bank's
recent default data.

Forward looking information

An averview of the approach to estimating ECLs is set out in note 4.7.6, estimates and assumptions. Te ensure
completeness and accuracy, the Bank obtains the data used from third party sources (WB, MB, Government of
RA and etc.). In order to generate the influence of the macroeconomic factors, the Bank defermining the weights
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to the selected macroeconomic factars and ta the multlple scenarios (Base, Upside and Downslde), which are
predicted, To calculate the macroeconomic adjusiment for ECL the Bank uses a wide range of forecast
infarmation as economic inputs for lts models, including:

=  GDP growth/decrease

GDP {current LCU}

Wet current {ransfers from abroad
Unemployment

Bank nonperforming loans fo total gross loans
Trade growth

Industry growth

Construction growth

Agriculture growth

Official exchange rate

[nflation

Real estate prices (average price in Yerevan) (leave onjy those indicators that have aclually been used)

37.1.2 Collateral and other credit enhancement

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. '
Guidelines are in place covering the acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral,

The main types of collateral obtained are, as follows:

»  For securities tending and reverse repurchase transactions, cash or securitles

« For commercial lending, charges over real estate properties, movable properties, equipment, inventory
and trade receivables and, in special circumstances, government guarantees

«  For consumer lending residential properties and other collateral.
For mortgages over residential propetties

Management monitors the market valuz of collateral and will request additional collateral in accordance with the
underlying agreement.

The Bank did not hold any financial instruments for which no loss allowance is recognised because of collateral,

Longer-term finance and lending to corporate entities are generally secured; revalving individual credit facilities
arg generally unsecured, In addition, in erder to minimise the credit loss, the Bank will seek additional collateral
from the counterparty as soon as impairment indicators are noticed for the relevant individual ioans and
advances.

Collateral held as securily for financial assets other than loans and advances is determined by the nature of the
instrument. Generally, no collaterals are required for provision of loans and advances to financial institutions,
especially to Banks. The exception is collaterals obiained under repurchase agreements and securities botrowing
transactions. Debt securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured,

37.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair valute or fiture cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in market variables such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The Bank classifies exposures ta market
tisk into either trading or non-trading portfolios. The market risk for the trading portfolio fs managed and monitarad
based on Value at Risk {"VaR"} methadology which reflects the interdependency between risk variables. Non-
trading positions are managed and monitored using ather sensitivity analyses.

37.2.1 Market risk — Trading {including financial assets and financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss)

The Board has set limlts on the leve! of risk that may be accepled. The Bank appliss a VaR methodology to
assess the market risk positions held and to estimate the potential economic loss based upon a number of
parametsrs and assumplions for various changes In market condifions, VaR Is a method used In measuring
financial risk by estimating the polential negative change in the market value of a portfolio at a given confidence
levs! and over a specified time horizon. The Bank uses a full non-linear VaR model for interest rate, spread, and
volatility risk. These calculations are based on Monte-Carlo simulations derived from a varance/covariance
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matrix. Far the VaR in relationto forefgn exchange rates, the Bank uses a varlancefcovariance model, The equity-
specific fsk is captured by using a single factor model.

Objectives and limitations of the VaR methodology

The Bank uses simulation models to assess possible changes in the market value of the trading portfolio based
on historical data from the past five years. The VaR models are designed to measure market risk in a normat
market environment, The models assume that any changes occurring in the risk factors affecting the normal
market environment will follaw a normal distdbution. The distribulion is calculated by using exponentially weightad
historical data. The use of VaR has lmitations because it is based on hislorical carrefations and volatilities in
market prices and assumes that future price movements will follow & statlstical distrdbution. Due to the fact that
VaR relies heavily on historical data o provide infarmation and may nat clearly predict the future changes and
modifications of the risk factors, the probability of large market moves may be underestimated if changes in risk
factors fall to align with the normal distribution assumption. VaR may also be under- or over-esimated due to the
assumptions placed on risk factors and the relationship between such factors for specific instruments. Even
thaugh positions may change throughaut the day, the VaR only rapresents the risk of the perifolios at the close
of each business day, and it does not account for any losses that may cecur beyond the 89% confidence level,

In practice the actual trading results will differ from the VaR caleulation and, in particular, the calculation does
not provide a meaningfulindication of profits and Josses in stressed market conditions. To determine the reliability
of the VaR models, actual outcomes are monitored ragularly fo test the validity of the assumptions and the
parameters used in the VaR calculation. Market risk positions are also subject to regular siress tesls to ensure
that the Bank would withstand an extreme markst event,

VaR assumptions

The VaR that the Bank measures is an estimate, using a confidence level of 99%, of the potential loss that is not
expected to be exceeded if the cumrent market risk positions were fo be held unchanged for one day, The use of
99% confidence leve! means that, within a one day harizon, losses exceeding the VaR figure should oceur, on
average, not mara that once every hundred days,

VaR limits have been established for all foreign currency open positions and exposures are reviewed daily against
tha limits by management. The estimated potential one-day losses on its foreign cun-ency denominated financlal
instruments, as calculated in the VAR modaels are the following:

Since VaR is an integral part of the Bank's market risk management, VaR limits have baan established for all
trading operations and exposures are reviewed daily against the limits by management ;

in thousand MNT Simuiation  Simulation
2022 = 31 December (554,115} {560,089)
2022 — Daily average {287,755} {283,867)
2022 —The highest {912,898} {904,962)
2022 — The lowest (97,913 {108,490}
2021 - 31 December {224,180} {230,154)
2021 - Daily average {371,540} (371,453)
2021 —The highest (801,772} {605,992)
2021 — Tha lowest (199,645) {204,929)
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- Tha table below summarizes the Bank's exposure to foreign exchange risk as at 31 December 2022. Included In
the table are the Bank's financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by currencies,

31 December 2022

In thousand MNT
MNT Usp EURO Other Fotal
E Financial essets and financlal lfakilitles by currency
Assels
— Cash and balances with BoM 513001,307 188240178 5476270 21678432 726,396,277
i Due from banks and financial
( mstitutions 196,386,286 29,209,592 991,218 4,949 446 231,538,852
Loans and advances to
- customors 1,868,283,518 342,684 - - 1,868,526,502
zf Financlal assets held for frading 10,896,733 - - . 10,896,733
o ' Financial assets at fair value
’ through profit or loss 128,002,847 - - - 128,002,047
N ) Debt instrurnents at {air value
I ' through other comprehsnsive 768,287,505 189,484,274 - - 957,771,729
income
i Equity instruments at fair vajus
through ether comprehensive 103,350 - 17,116 . 120,466
income
Debt instruments al smortized
( cost 68,223,496 - - - 68,223,496
Derivative financlal instruments 12,785,548 2,248,887 - - 15,034,433
Other financial asssts 7,688,803 27,194 - 288 8,016,285
Total 3,573,861,891 407,653,059 6,484,604 26,628,166  4,014,627,720
Liahllitles
Bue to other banks 114,266,666 200,849,324 320,754 96,428 315,533,091
Dua to customer 2,550,280,155 170,860,522 5,832,967 22,286,849  2,749,380.513
Ciher borrowed funds 196,388,402 38,545,545 - . 234,834,137
Repurchase agreements 253,046,417 B0,180,796 - - 333,230,213
Brarivative financiad instruments 2,286,265 _ - R 2,286,265
Lease payables 197,130 - - - 197,130
Other financiat [iabiities 25,498,241 208,416 610 158,793 25,807,080
Total 3,141,967,256 490,644,703 6,154,351 22,682,070  3,661,448,379
{ . Net position 431,894,636  (62,991,644) 330,253 3,046,006 353,178,341
L
L.
¢
¢
[
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£ 31 Pacember 2021
in thousand MNT
MNT usp EURO Other Total
E_"' Financlal assets and financiai liabilitles by currency
Assels
Cash and balances with BoM 209,167,524 8,845,131 5102,584 27,805,442 250,820,691
{f Due from banks and financial 235 16,456,773 4688530 7,388,778 28,634,316
inslitutions
o l.oans and advances io
_customers 2,231,852,436 5,494,912 - - 2,237,147,348
{ Finarwial assets held for {rading 7.310,813 - . - 7,310,873
Finangciatl assels af fair vajue
through profit or foss 80,844,572 - - - 80,844,572
Dbt instruments at falr value
¢ through other comprehensive 825,556,052 141,758,715 - - 967,315,767
Income
[ Equity instruments at fair value
) through other comprahensive 103,350 - 15,035 - 118,385
Ineeme
} Dabt instrumenis at amortised 67 766,567 . ) . 67,786,507
’ cost ' 4 \ 4
Derivative financial instrumants - 759,107 . - 753,107
Other financial assels 318,184 280,080 48,323 - 646,587
e
[ Total 3,422,730,763 173,505,718 9,854,482 35,194,220 3,641,384,183
- Llabflitles
: Due to other banks 96,249,022 9,479,998 520,193 9,694,579 115,962,798
{ Due to customer 2,703,152 661 123,246,955 8,672,876 21,725,553 2,856,788,045
L Other borrowed funds 184,665,980 67,710,331 - - 252,376,321
Repurchase agreements 87,820,042 65,989,651 - - 152,800,693
Derivative financial inslumenis 1,549,920 - - - 1,549 920
Leasa payables 234,557 - - - 234,557
Other financial liabifties 15,447,417 311,062 53,966 35,841 15,847,976
Tatal 3,089,119,309 266,737,988 9,256,041 31,455,973 3,308,569,311
Net position 333,620,454  (93,142,270) 598,441 3,738,247 244,814,872
37.2.2 Market risk — non-trading
Interast rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates wilf affect bank's profitability, future cash
flows or the fair values of financlal instruments, The Bank's lending, funding and investment activities give fise to
.- interest rate risk. The immediate impact of variation in interest rate is on Bank's net interest income, while a long-
term impact is on the Bank's net worth since the economic value of the Bank's assets, ligbilities and off-balance
sheet exposures will be affected. Management has established limits on the interest rate gaps for stipulated
pariods, Positions are monitored on a daily basis and hedging strategies are used to ensure positions arg
maintained with the established limits.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity io a reasonable possible change in interest rates, with all othar
variables held constant, of the Bank’s profit or loss. The sensitivity of the profit or loss is the effect of the assumed
changes in interest rates on the net interest income for one year, based on the floating rats financial assets and
financial liabilities held at 31 Decembear 2022 and 31 December 2021,
Stale Bari JSC
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Change in basis Sensltivity of net interest
In thousand MNT peints Income
2022 2021
Currency
Euro =120 6132 832
usp +-120 3,394,613 G60,229
MNT +-120 5,662,113 3,286,234
Other - 120 136,153 31,853
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrurnent will fluctuate due to changes in {oreign exchange
rates. Currency risk is the possibility of financial loss to the Banl arising fromn adverse movements in foreign
exchange rates. The Bank's management sets limits on the level of exposura by currencles, which are manitored
on a frequent basis. Apart from using fareign exchange exposure mismatch, the Bank applies Value-at-Risk
("vaR" ) simulation model to manage and measure foreign exchange risk. VaR is a method used In measuring
financial risk by estimating the potential negative change in the market value of a portfolio at a given confidence
level and over specified time horizon,

37.3  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank wilt be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under
nermat and siressed circumstances. To limit this dsk, management has arranged diversified funding sources in
addition to its core deposit base, manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors future cash flows and
liquidity on a daily basis. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high-
grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Bank always holds sufficient amount of liquid assets which is much higher tilan the level required by the
BoM. In addition, the Bank complies with the reserve requirement of 8 percent of customer's MNT deposits and
18 percent of customer's USD deposit based on an average period of two weeks.

In accardance with the Bank's poficy, the liquidity position is assessed under a variety of scenarios, giving dua
consideration to stress factors relating to both the market in general and specifically to the Bank..

Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Bank's financial liabiliies as of 31 Dacember 2022 based
on contracfual undiscounted repayment obligations. Refer to Note 36 for the expected maturities of these
liabilities. Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately, However,
the Bank expects that many customers will not request repayment on the earliest date the Bank could be required
to pay and the table does not reflact the expacted cash flows indicated by the Bank's deposit retention history.
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37.4 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the
Bank's involvement with finanelal instruments, including processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure,
and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and
regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour,

The Bank's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage
to the Bank's reputation with overall cost effectiveness.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is
assigned to the <Risk Management depariment, Board, Executive Managsmant, other>, This responsibility is
supported by the development of overall standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas:

= requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of transactions;
= requirements far the reconciliation and ronitoring of transactions;

+« compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements, inciuding the minimal reqguirements of the Central
Bank of Mongolia on internal contro| system;

e documentation of conirols and procedures;

» requirements for the periodic assessment of oparafional risks faced, and the adequacy of conlrals and
procedures to address the risks identified;

s requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remadial acticn;
« development of contingency plans;

» fraining and professional development;

« ethical and business standards; and

v risk mitigation.

Compliance with Bank standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by Internal Audit.
The resuits of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the management of the Bank to which they relate, with
summaries submitted to the Board.

38 Capital adequacy

The adequacy of the Bank's capital Is monitored using the rules and ratios established by BoM. The Bank
complied in full with the capital requirements set by the regulatory body.

The primary objectives of the Bank's capital management are to ensure that the Bank complies with externally
imposed capital requirements and that the Bank maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and to maximise sharehalders' value,

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in econemic conditions
and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Bank may adjust
the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital fo shareholders or issue capital securities. No
changes were made in the oblectives, polices and processes from the previous years,

The minimum ratio between total capital and rigsk weighted assets required by the Ceniral Bank of Mongalia is
12%.

Regulatory capital consists of Tier 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings
including current year profit, and general reserve. Regulatory capital is calculated in accordance with the
requirements of the Central Bank of Mongolia and accounting standards of Mongolia. The other component of
regulatory capital is Tier 2 capltal, which includes revaluation reserves and other reserves,

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hiararchy of risk weights classified according to the nature
of and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and operating risks.

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021 the amount of total capital, risk waited assels and capital adequacy ratio
caiculated In accordance with the requirements of Central Bank of Mongolia are provided below.
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T In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Core capital adequacy ratio 23.9% 15.3%
] Risk-weighted capital ralio 23.9% 15.3%
— In thousand MNT 2022 2021
Tier [ capital
----- Owdinary shares 188,774,063 178,000,000
Additional paid capitel in ordinary shares 14,652,725 .
Other reserves 693,669 693,669
Retained aarnings 278,586,612 181,115,728
Adjustment for [FRS and BoM difference* {18,730,245) {18,665,389)
Total Tier 1 capital 483,956,123 341,144,008
Tier |l capita)
Revaluation surplus - "
[ Subordinated loan - -
Total Tier Il capital - R
I Total capital § capital base 463,956,123 341,144,008
*Regulatory adjustments represent mainly the difference between the provisioring reguirement under the
M BOM
regulation and the ECL requirement undar IFRS, The difference is being adjusted for in the calculation of the
b capital ratios in accordance to the regulatory requirement.
The breakdown of risk weighted assets into the varlous categories af risk weights as at 3 1 December was
as follows:
In thousand MNT 2022 2021
. Assets Weighted Aggets Weighted
f %
L - 0 1,716,285 537 - 1,214,180,817 -
20 225,114,450 45,022,890 19,225,416 3,845,083
50 482 167,902 241,083,951 471,495,586 235,747,793
70 - -
80 - -
90 - - R -
100 1,620,433, 731 1,520,433,731 1,882,074,432 1,882,074,432
120 “ - _ N
""" 150 36,184 877 54,277,316 28,602,087 42,903,146
200 1,613,900 3,227,800 - -
Adjustments: - -
. Allowance for spread of portfolio - (2,8003,684}
Operatlonal tisk rafic 35,158,880 - 33,708,759
Foreign exchange risk ratio 38,179,132 - 37,437,829
L Total 3,081,800,306  1,937,423,499  3,615,578,148  2,232,013,358
L_::
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39 Segment reporting

Operaling segmenis

The Bank Is organised on the basis of three main operating segments, Thase operating segments are monitored,
and strategic decisions are made on the basis of segment operating resuits,

Retail banking representing private banking services, private customer cirrent accounts, savings, deposits,
investment savings products, custody, credit and debit cards, consumer loans and mortgages.

Transactions between the business segmenis are (on normal commercial terms and conditions. Funds ara
ordinarily reallocated between segments, resulting in funding cost fransfers disclosed in operating income.
Interest charged for these funds is based on the Bank's cost of capital.) There are no other material items of
Income or expense between the business segments. Segment assets and liabilities comprise operating assets
and liabilities, being the majority of the balances sheat, bift excluding items such as taxation and borrowings.,
tnternal charges and transfer pricing adjustments have been reflected in the performance of each business,
Revenue sharing agreements are used to allocate external customer revenues to a business segment on a
reasonable basis,

Segment infarmation about these businasses is presented balow.
31 December 2022

In thousand MNT Individuals Business Regt?lilt);tra): Total
Body
:}:ﬁ;@?:‘;‘;{;gf::ﬁtjd using the 280,242,063 17,699,846 106,824,235 404,766,134
Interest and similar ingome 163,785 - - 163,785
Interest and similar expenses {105,497 584) (4,648,623} (72,713,418) {182,8569,623)
Net interest income 174,908,254 13,054,223 34,110,819 222,070,295
Fee and commission Income 32,289,174 1,823,342 20,002 34,132,518
Fea and commission exgense 7.212890)  (1,159,603) (455,831) (©,628,414)
Net fee and commission income 25,078,284 663,649 {435,828) 25,304,105
Net trading income 5,082,009 350,566 7,028,918 13,451,603
Other operating (expense}income (2,360,648) 652,878 (851,636) (2,559,306)
et l9os Income/expense on 13,831,746 (8.999,759) 525,806 4,157,783
" Operating expenses (126,468,642} (10,773,074) (1,039,158) (138,280,871)
Prafit {loss) bafore tax 90,869,093 {6,054,494) 39,339,021 124,153,620
Incorne tax expense (19,637,520} 1,280,212 (8,501,469) (26,858,777)
Brofit for the year 71,231,573 (4,774,282) 30,837,552 97,204,843
Total assets 2,620,388,136 263670,045  1,380,583,353  4,164,641,534
Totat fizbilities 2,172,611,173 196,070,863  1,299,750,209  3,66B,432,355
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31 December 2021

In thousand MNT . Capital
Individuals Business Regulatory Total

Body

Interest income calculated using the

pibiab el saiorng: 265,401,962 18,734,491 79,363,735 363,600,187
O — 16,804,118 365,384 4,804,139 21,973,641
Interest and similar expenses (119,723,081) (6,172,213) (64.,745,227) (190,640,521)
Net interest income 162,482,999 12,927,662 19,422,646 194,833,308
Fee and commission income 27,543 249 1,496,991 13,367 29,053 807
Fee and commission expense (5,375,678) (876,742) (466,211) (6,718,631)
Net fee and commission income 22,167,571 620,249 (452,844) 22,334,976
Net trading income 1,932 915 83,265 1,990,461 4 008 641
Other operating (expense)/income (12,805,534) (3,789,569) (946,650) (17,541,753)
E;gﬁgig‘?s:sis":tgme"e"pense an (29,205,161) (1,612,543) (1,195,187) (32,012,890)
Operating expenses (101,273,398) (8,272,085) (1,059,940) (110,605,423)
Prafit (loss) before tax 43,299,392 (43,019) 17,758,486 61,014,859
Income tax expense (10,834 468) 10,764 (4,443,567) (15,267,271)
Profit for the year 32,464,924 (32,255) 13,314,919 45,747,588
Total assets 2,497 313,853 171,047 480 1,124,373,142 3,792,734 256
Total liabilities 2,242,051,521 111,873,718 1,060,325,078 3,404 250,318

40 Events after the reporting period

The conflict broke out on 24 February 2022 in Ukraine has evolved rapidly, having a significant impact on the
world economy. United States and European countries have imposed severe sanctions against Russia. Western
powers are discussing widening existing sanctions. Russia is the main trading partner of Mongolia, hence
sanctions imposed as of now as well as escalation of those sanctions could have a drastical effect on the
economy and financial markets of Mongolia. The immediate global implications might be higher inflation, lower
growth and some disruption to financial markets as deeper sanctions take hold.

The management considers that no adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred since the
reporting date.

41 Translation

These financial statements are prepared and submitted both in Mongolian and English languages. In the event
of discrepancies between the Mongolian and English versions, the Mongolian version shall prevail.

42 Authorisation of financial statements

o{ the year ended 31 Dec

7 M

were approved by the management on 10 March

Chief Exe¢ufive Officer Director of Finanglal Department
U. Gantu M. Gantuya
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